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CEO'S STATEMENT
THRUBES

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Kai
Yuan Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group” or “Kai Yuan”), | now present the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$332.9 million for the
Year, as compared to the loss of approximately HK$30.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Preceding Year”). The increase in
loss for the Year was mainly attributable to the significant decline in
the revenue contributed by the Paris Marriott Hotel Champs-Elysées
(the "Paris Marriott Hotel”) from the hotel operation segment. The Paris
Marriott Hotel had been temporarily closed during the coronavirus
pandemic since 17 March 2020, as the coronavirus pandemic had no signs
of subsidence in France. The Group also recorded an impairment loss of
approximately HK$333.6 million as the result of the temporary closure of
the Paris Marriott Hotel. Further details will be addressed in the section
headed Management Discussion and Analysis.

The Group completed acquisition of the 37.125% equity interests in 16
Sl IH ERHE B R A 7] (Beijing Chemical Reaction Engineering Science &
Technology Co., Ltd¥) (the “Associated Company”) in the Preceding Year.
During the Year, the Group entered into and completed a RMB180 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$211.7 million) pledged loan agreement
with the Associated Company (the “Pledged Loan") at an interest rate of
6% per annum. The interest incurred from Pledged Loan would contribute
as another income of the Group. The Group also subscribed for the
3-year convertible bonds issued by a listed company in Hong Kong in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$97.8 million with a view to leveraging
on the opportunity to bringing in interest income and additional benefits
by exercising the conversion rights attaching to the convertible bonds.

Looking forward, the Group anticipates business and investment outlook
of 2021 will be extremely challenging. For the hotel operation segment,
the number of coronavirus infections in France remains at a high level.
Although the vaccination programme has commenced, but the pace is
relatively slow as at the date of this report. Meanwhile, the Paris Marriott
Hotel remains temporarily closed as at the date of this report, the Group
will continue to monitor the coronavirus pandemic development in
France. For the money lending segment, the price of commercial and
residential properties had shown a downtrend momentum during the
Year, the decline in property prices might continue in 2021. The Group
will exercise extreme caution and adopt risk aversive measures when
conducting existing business while being attentive to new investment
opportunities.

In conclusion and on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to all shareholders, customers,

employees, suppliers and business partners for their continuous support
and encouragement.

On behalf of the Board

Xue Jian
Executive director and Chief Executive Officer

29 March 2021

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$37.8 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 84.6% from approximately HK$244.7 million for the
Preceding Year. The significant decrease in revenue during the Year
was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue contributed by the
Paris Marriott Hotel Champs-Elysées (“Paris Marriott Hotel”) of the hotel
operation segment, as well as the decrease in revenue generated from
the money lending segment. Due to the temporary closure of the Paris
Marriott Hotel during the Year, the Group recorded an impairment loss
of approximately HK$333.6 million on the Paris Marriott Hotel properties.
The Group recorded a share of loss of an associate of approximately
HK$6.6 million during the Year, as the associate was still in the
construction phase. The Group also recorded the gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$8.5 million.

As the result of the outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic, government
subsidies had been made available to the Group’s subsidiaries in France
and in Hong Kong and the Group applied the government subsidies
to reduce operational costs in France and Hong Kong respectively.
The Group recorded the loss for the Year of approximately HK$332.9
million, as compared to the loss of approximately HK$30.6 million for the
Preceding Year. The increase in loss for the Year was mainly attributable
o (i) the decline in revenue and gross profit of the Paris Marriott Hotel
during the Year because of the temporary closure; and (ii) the record
of the impairment loss on the Paris Marriott Hotel properties. Loss
attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was approximately
HK$332.9 million, as compared to the loss of approximately HK$30.6
million for the Preceding Year. The basic and diluted loss per share for
the Year was HK2.60 cents, as compared to the basic and diluted loss per
share of HK0.24 cents for the Preceding Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

The total non-current assets of the Group as at 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately HK$2,996.5 million, representing an increase
of approximately 5.1% from approximately HK$2,850.0 million as at
31 December 2019. The increase in the total non-current assets of the
Group during the Year was mainly due to the record of an impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment, but compensated by the record
of investment in an associate, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and loan to an associate. The total current assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$1,070.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 21.3% from approximately
HKS$1,360.1 million as at 31 December 2019. The decrease in the total
current assets of the Group during the Year was mainly due to the
reduction in the cash and cash equivalents as the result of the provision
of the loan to an associate, the subscription of the convertible bonds
in the principal amount of HK$97.8 million, and the reduction in trade
receivables and loan receivables.

The total current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately HK$1,692.4 million, representing an
increase of approximately 2,363.5% from approximately HK$68.7 million
as at 31 December 2019. The increase in the total current liabilities of
the Group during the Year was mainly due to the classification of the
interest-bearing bank borrowings of EUR175.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,625.8 million) from non-current liabilities to current
liabilities, as the Group could not fulfill certain financial ratio required in
the financing arrangement. The total non-current liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$162.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 90.5% from approximately
HKS$1,718.6 million as at 31 December 2019. The decrease in the non-
current liabilities of the Group during the Year was mainly due to the
classification of the interest-bearing bank borrowings of EUR175.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,625.8 million) from non-
current liabilities to current liabilities, as the Group could not fulfill certain
financial ratio required in the financing arrangement. The Group is in the
process to negotiate a waiver from the lenders and the formal response
from the lenders is still outstanding as of the date of this report. When
the formal wavier is available, the bank borrowings will be classified as
non-current liabilities. Besides, the directors are of the opinion that the
lenders will not take any action to exercise their rights in respect the non-
compliance with certain financial ratio based on their communications
with the lenders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Segmental review of the Group’s operations during the Year is as follows:

Hotel Operation

The Group recorded the revenue of approximately HK$36.9 million from
the hotel operation segment, as compared to the revenue from the hotel
operation segment of approximately HK$240.9 million for the Preceding
Year. The decrease in revenue of the hotel operation segment for the
Year was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue contributed by
the Paris Marriott Hotel as the Paris Marriott Hotel had been temporarily
closed since 17 March 2020 as the result of the coronavirus pandemic.
Majority of the hotels within the competitive set of the Paris Marriott
Hotel also closed temporarily as at 31 December 2020. The Group
recorded the loss of approximately HK$445.1 million in this segment for
the Year, as compared to the loss of approximately HK$14.7 million for the
Preceding Year. The increase in loss of this segment during the Year was
mainly attributable to the significant decline in the revenue contributed
by the Paris Marriott Hotel. During the Year, the French government had
deployed different measures including the declaration of public health
state of emergency and night curfew in order to combat the coronavirus
pandemic, as the number of daily infection cases escalated. Cinemas,
theatres and other cultural centres was order to remain closed. In
addition, general travel from the United States of America and the Middle
East, from where customers constituted a significant proportion of the
revenue of the Paris Marriott Hotel, were not allowed in France during
the Year. As a result, the Board had decided to temporarily close the Paris
Marriott Hotel as a measure to restrain operating costs.

The coronavirus pandemic continued during the second half of the Year
and showed no signs of subsidence in near period, the Paris Marriott
Hotel was actively considering and taking measures to further restrain
operating costs. During the Year, the Paris Marriott Hotel received a one-
off net insurance compensation from the business interruption caused
by the Yellow Vest Movement of approximately HK$9.2 million. The
Paris Marriott Hotel also received government grants and subsidies as
the result of the coronavirus pandemic and had applied the subsidies
to reduce the operating costs. Below is a comparison of the operational
performance of the Paris Marriott Hotel during the Year against the
Preceding Year:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R D

Money Lending

Revenue from this segment amounted to approximately HK$0.9 million
during the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 76.5% from
approximately HK$3.8 million for the Preceding Year. The decrease in
revenue generated from this segment was mainly due to the decrease
in the amount of mortgage loans granted to borrowers for interest
income during the Year. The Group recorded a loss of approximately
HK$0.1 million from this segment for the Year, as compared to the profit
of approximately HK$2.6 million for the Preceding Year. There was no
mortgage loan receivable as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$35.0 million).

Equity Investment and Other Investment

The Group owned 37.125% equity interests in the Associated Company,
b e Im B B BR 2 R (Beijing Chemical Reaction Engineering
Science & Technology Co., Ltd*). During the Year, the Group entered into
and completed a RMB180.0 million pledged loan agreement with the
Associated Company at an interest rate of 6% per annum. The interest
income incurred from the Pledged Loan would contribute as another
income of the Group.

During the Year, the Group subscribed for the 3-year convertible bonds
(the “Convertible Bonds”) issued by a listed company in Hong Kong
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$97.8 million at the coupon
rate of 8% per annum with a view to leveraging on the opportunity to
bringing in interest income and additional benefits by exercising the
conversion rights attaching to the convertible bonds. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 2 November 2020 for details. The
Group recorded the gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately HK$8.5 million during the Year.

PROSPECTS

Hotel Operation

The coronavirus pandemic continues into 2021. As of the date of this
report, the Paris Marriott Hotel remains closed temporarily due to the
number of infection cases hover at high level, and the various lockdown
and night curfew measures currently in place. The circulation of the
coronavirus has also been accelerated due to the existence of different
virus variant. Based on the latest information, France aims to have
vaccinated at least 30 million people only until mid-April to mid-May
2021. In the meantime, the Paris Marriott Hotel will continue to restrain
operating costs during this difficult time. The Group will continue to
monitor the development of the coronavirus pandemic and assess its
impact on the operations and financial performance of the Group.

Money Lending

The Board considers Hong Kong's mortgage loan market will remain
challenging, being heavily competitive with uncertain prospects. The
performance of this segment is dependent on the amount of successful
loans granted to the borrowers and general market interest rate
trend. The Board would exercise the utmost caution when conducting
mortgage loan business in Hong Kong.

* For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Equity Investment and Other Investment

The commercial production of the first phase production project of the
Associated Company has commenced in January 2021. The Board holds
an optimistic view in the prospect of the chemical industry in the PRC,
as it is projected that the PRC's chemical industry will provide over half
of the global chemical industry’s growth over the coming decade. The
Board also expects that the Associated Company will benefit from the
enforcement of higher environmental standards for the chemical industry
in the PRC.

The interest rate of the Convertible Bonds is higher than the interest
rates of fixed deposits offered by well-recognised financial institutions in
Hong Kong. The Directors remain the view that the subscription of the
Convertible Bonds would broaden the Group’s source of income and
provide the Group with a stable and attractive recurring income.

LOOKING AHEAD

The Board will concurrently review the Group’s portfolio to restructure
and enhance the quality of assets held. The Board will also continue to
explore investment opportunities from new business segments with a
view to enhancing and improving returns to the Company’s stakeholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2020, total assets and net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$4,067.2 million and HK$2,211.8 million respectively
(31 December 2019: approximately HK$4,210.1 million and HK$2,422.8
million, respectively). The cash and bank balance of the Group as at
1 December 2020 were approximately HK$892.9 million, and were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Euro, United States dollar and
Renminbi (31 December 2019: approximately HKS$1,237.2 million).
The total current assets of the Group as at 31 December 2020 were
approximately HK$1,070.7 million (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$1,360.1 million). As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$621.7 million (31 December 2019: net
current assets of approximately HK$1,291.4 million). The Group adopted
a conservative treasury approach and had tight control over its cash
management. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had outstanding bank
loans and other borrowings amounted to approximately HK$1,625.8
million' (31 December 2019: approximately HK$1,481.0 million), none
of which (31 December 2019: Nil) were due within one year. As at 31
December 2020, the Group's gearing ratio (total borrowings/total assets)
was at approximately 40.0% (31 December 2019: approximately 35.2%).
The Group constantly monitors its cash flow position, maturity profile of
borrowings, availability of banking facilities, gearing ratio and interest rate
exposure.

(1) Approximately HK$1,625.8 million (equivalent to €175,000,000) at
the interest rate of 3 months EURIBOR plus 2.2% per annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the Year, the Group had no material acquisition or disposal of

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group had operations in France, Luxembourg, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong where transactions and cash flow
were denominated in local currencies, including Euro, Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollars. As a result, the Group was exposed to foreign currency
exposure with respect to Euro and Renminbi, which mainly occurred from
conducting daily operations and financing activities through local offices
where local currencies were different from the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group had not entered into any forward contracts
to hedge the foreign exchange exposure. The Group managed its foreign
exchange risks by performing regular review and monitoring of foreign
exchange exposure. The Group would consider employing foreign

exchange hedging arrangements when appropriate and necessary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, cash deposits amounting to approximately
HK$42.5 million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$38.8 million) and
a building of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,647.6 million (31 December 2019: approximately HKS$2,775.7 million)

were pledged to secure bank loan granted to the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

The Group had 7 employees as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: 7). The total employee remuneration during the Year was
approximately HK$7.3 million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$8.5
million). Remuneration policies were reviewed regularly to ensure that
compensation and benefits packages were in line with the market level. In
addition to basic remuneration, the Group also provided other employee
benefits including bonuses, mandatory provident fund scheme, medical

insurance scheme and participation to the share option scheme.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xue Jian

Mr. Xue Jian, aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive Director on
7 January 2009. Mr. Xue was re-designated as an executive Director
on 6 January 2011, and appointed as chief executive officer on 1 June
2016. Mr. Xue also serves as director to a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Xue received his master’s degree in business administration
from Zhongnan University of Finance, Economics, Politics and Law. Mr.
Xue has over two decades of experience in the steelmaking industry and
in the commercial sector in the PRC. He was the legal representative of
Rizhao Steel Co., Limited*, and is a director of Rizhao Steel Holding Group
Co., Limited*. The Rizhao Steel group of companies is one of the largest
private steel makers in the PRC. Mr. Xue has also been appointed as the
supervisor of Jinghua Rigang Holding Group Co, Limited*.

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, aged 50, was appointed as an executive
Director on 18 May 2011. He has also been appointed as members of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
as well as chief financial officer, existing process agent and company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Law also serves as director, company
secretary and legal representative to a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Law has extensive experience in financial management and
professional accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Law was the
chief financial officer of Diamondlite Group, one of the leading jewelry
manufacturers in the PRC. Having started his career as a professional
accountant in an international accountancy firm, Mr. Law has undertaken
key financial management positions in companies engaged in a variety
of industries. Mr. Law is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Law is also
appointed as an independent non-executive director of KML Technology
Group Limited, the issued shares of which are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code:
8065).

*  Foridentification purpose only
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE
EE[T

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Tam Sun Wing, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 14 December 2001. He has also been appointed as
chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration committee, and
the member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Tam is a
professional accountant with more than 30 years of extensive audit and
business advisory experience. Mr. Tam is practicing as a director of FTW &
Partners CPA Limited. Mr. Tam is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Tam holds a Master Degree of Science in
Corporate Governance and Directorship from the Hong Kong Baptist
University.

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. Ng Ge Bun, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 September 2004. He has also been appointed as
member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee and
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ng holds the
degree in bachelor of science and degree in bachelor in laws. He obtained
a postgraduate certificate in laws from The University of Hong Kong. He
is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong and currently serves as a
consultant of Tang, Lai & Leung Solicitors.

Mr. He Yi

Mr. He Yi, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 18 May 2011. He has been appointed as member of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. He is the chief executive officer of
Shanghai YAOXIN Asset Investment and Management Limited. Prior
to this, he was the general manager of Barclays Bank Shanghai Branch
and has extensive experience in the financial industry. Mr. He started
his career with the Credit Agricole Indosuez in Shanghai and was the
head of treasury department and financial institutions department of
First Sino Bank, the head of global markets China and deputy general
manager of the Shanghai branch of Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited. Mr. He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a certified economist accredited by The Ministry
of Personnel of China. Mr. He also holds a postgraduate master degree
of economics from Fudan University, Shanghai, China. Mr. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Sunshine Oilsands Limited, the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
2012).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance. Continuous efforts
are made to review and enhance the Group's internal control policy and
procedures in light of local and international developments to instill best
practices.

The Board has set up procedures on corporate governance that comply
with the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) on corporate governance
practices based on the principles and code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to
Listing Rules.

The Company had complied with the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 with the following
deviations:

A.2.1 The Company does not have a Chairman. No replacement
appointment of the Chairman of the Board was made during
the Year. The role and responsibilities of the Chairman on
governance matters of the Company were shared between the
executive Directors during the Year. The Company will publish an
announcement once an appointment has been made in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

A.4.1 Non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific
term. They are, however, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company pursuant
to the Company's bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”). As such, the Company
considers that such provisions are sufficient to meet the underlying
objectives of the relevant provision of the CG Code.

E.1.2 The Company does not have a Chairman, an executive Director,
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, was elected to chair the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2020 in accordance with
the Bye-laws.

The Board will keep these matters under review.

Following sustained development and growth of the Company, we will
continue to monitor and revise the Company’s corporate governance
policies in order to ensure that such policies meet the general rules and
standards required by the shareholders of the Company.

No appointment of the Chairman of the Board was made during the Year.
The role and responsibilities of the Chairman on governance matters of
the Company were shared between the executive Directors during the
Year. The Company will publish an announcement once an appointment
has been made in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRES

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
The Company, having made specific equity, has confirmed with the
Directors that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions.

THE BOARD AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

The Board is responsible for directing the strategic objectives of the
Group and overseeing the management of the business. The Directors are
responsible for leadership and control of the Group. The overall corporate
governance structure of the Company is depicted in the following chart:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD

(R)

(B)

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, serving the important
function of guiding the management.

The Board members during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xue Jian (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

No Chairman was appointed during the Year. There are no
relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among the Directors. All Directors
are not appointed for a specific term. Although all Directors
are not appointed for a specific term, all Directors, except the
Chairman (if any), are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company pursuant
to the Bye-laws.

ROLE AND FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic business
development, reviewing and monitoring the business
performance of the Group, as well as preparing and approving
financial statements. The Directors, collectively and individually,
are aware of their responsibilities to shareholders, for the manner
in which the affairs of the Company are managed and operated.
In the appropriate circumstances and as and when necessary, the
Directors will consent to the seeking of independent professional
advice at the Group's expense, ensuring that board procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions
of the Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where the management should report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board will review
those arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRES

The Board has the full support from the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities. Appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors” and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries
arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged
by the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board had held
meetings and discussed following issues:

1 reviewed the internal control system and risk management
of the Group;

2 discussed the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and the interim results of the
Group for the period ended 30 June 2020 respectively;

3 considered the recommendation of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and the book close
period, if any;

4 proposed re-election of the Directors;

5 proposed the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the

auditors of the Company, and discussed the auditors
remuneration for the annual audit;

6 reviewed the effects on the changes of the accounting
standards and principles;

7 proposed the general mandates to issue and repurchase
shares of the Company;

8 considered the temporary closure and the delay of the re-
opening of the Paris Marriott Hotel; and

9 approved the subscription of the 3-year convertible bonds
of a Hong Kong listed company.
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MEETING RECORDS

There were in total 6 board meetings and general meetings held

for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The following set out the attendance record of Board meetings
and general meetings held during the Year:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Q)

TEERBES
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REBEE-Z-_TF+-_A=+—HI1t
FE GAHBFTTeoNEESSHENME

RA® -

RTEIFARTZEETEEHEN

BERAREZ HFRRH

Attendance for board meeting

for the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-Z2_ZF+=-HA=+—H

LFECEEEERHESR
Board members Board Meetings General Meeting
EZERE Exged RRXE
Mr. Xue Jian 4/5 0/1
Bt
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen 4/5 1/1
BRERE
Mr. Tam Sun Wing 5/5 1/1
TR E
Mr. Ng Ge Bun 5/5 11
REWFE
Mr. He Yi 5/5 1/1
BRELE

One general meeting was held for the year ended 31 December

2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board had at
all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents
of such confirmation, the Company considers that the three
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate
governance policy and performing the corporate governance
duties including the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
The Directors are committed to participate in continuous
professional development. The Directors are regularly briefed
on amendments and updates on the relevant laws, rules and
regulations.

The Company had arranged, and all Directors namely, Mr. Xue
Jian, Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, Mr. Tam Sun Wing, Mr. Ng Ge
Bun and Mr. He Yi had enrolled and attended relevant professional
development courses to assist the Directors in discharging their
duties.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group, and to report on material
uncertainties, if any, relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue preparing
the accounts on a going concern basis. Save as already disclosed,
the Directors are not aware of any other material uncertainties
relating to events or condition which may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue preparing the financial
statements on the assumption that the Group will continue as
going concern.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The division of the responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer is clearly established. The Chairman provides leadership
for the Board and the Chief Executive Officer has overall chief executive
responsibility for the Group’s business development and day-to-day
management generally.

No appointment of the Chairman of the Board was made during the Year.

The role and responsibilities of the Chairman on governance matters of

the Company were shared by the executive Directors during the Year. The
Company will publish an announcement once an appointment has been
made in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Group adopted a board diversity policy. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance. The Board also sees diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. In forming its perspective on diversity, the Company will
also take into account of factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidate will bring to the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has also established the following committees with defined
terms of reference:

Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee
Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its term of
reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms of reference as well
as the structure and membership of each committee will be reviewed
from time to time.

(A) AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit committee was established on 14 December 2001. It
currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors.

Composition of Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2020 was as follows:

Mr. Tam Sun Wing (Chairman)
Mr. He Yi
Mr. Ng Ge Bun
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Role and function
The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for:

(a)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to discuss with the auditors the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commences;

to review the Company’s annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
report before submission to the Board, focusing
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i1) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

V) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with the management to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have an effective
system. This discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions.
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Meeting Record

The Audit Committee met two times during the Year to discuss
and approve the interim and annual results, and to review the
internal control procedures of the Group.

The attendance record of Audit Committee meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Committee member

L EG
BERZBEENFAERRTMASH
Aafim Rt /ER R 2 FEE R
AN E 2 NERESIRARFF ©

EREEeNBE_ZTE-_ZTFE+_A
=+ BLEFEMRITEHZILRERL
SRINT

Attendance at meetings held for
the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E-_EFt+-A=t—-HLEFE

EZEEERE FrBfTadchiE®
Mr. Tam Sun Wing 2/2
BETERS

Mr. He Yi 2/2
BESE

Mr. Ng Ge Bun 2/2
REWSEE

During the meetings, the Audit Committee discussed the
following matters:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Financial Reporting

The Audit Committee met with the external auditors to
discuss the interim and annual financial statements and
system of internal control of the Group. The auditors
and the chief financial officer were also in attendance to
answer questions on the financial results.

Where there were questions on the financial statements
and system of control of the Group reviewed by the Audit
Committee, the management of the Company would
provide breakdown, analysis and supporting documents
to the Audit Committee members in order to ensure that
the Audit Committee members were fully satisfied and
make proper recommendation to the Board.

External Auditors

The appointment of the external auditors and the
audit fee were considered by the Audit Committee
and recommendations were made to the Board on the
selection of external auditors of the Company. The Audit
Committee had also discussed on auditor’s independence,
objectivity and effectiveness of audit process.

Internal Control
Review of the sufficiency and efficiency of risk
management and the internal control systems.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 March
2005. It currently consists of one executive Director and three

independent non-executive Directors.

Composition of the Remuneration Committee for the year ended

31 December 2020 was as follows:

Mr. Tam Sun Wing (Chairman)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

Role and function
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The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for:

reviewing any significant changes in human resources
policies and structure made in line with the then
prevailing trend and business requirements;

making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of non-executive Directors;

considering factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration;

reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
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6. reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms
and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not
excessive for the Company;

7. reviewing and approving compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

8 ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

9. advising the shareholders on how to vote in respect of
any service contract of the Director which shall be subject
to the approval of shareholders (in accordance with Rule
13.68 of the Listing Rules).

Where circumstances are considered appropriate, some
Remuneration Committee decisions are approved by way of
written resolutions passed by all the Remuneration Committee
members.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held and the attendance record is as
follows:

Committee member
EZEERE

TRELRES

REBEEZZ-_ZF+=-_A=+—H1t
FE - FTHWEEETRITMALE
AR HERENT :

Attendance at meetings held for

the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-_EFT-A=T-HLEEE
FRBfTER 2 HER

Mr. Tam Sun Wing
R

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
BoXERE

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

REW KL

Mr. He Yi

BkAE

During the meetings, the Remuneration Committee discussed
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. The Remuneration Committee had also discussed on
remuneration policy and performance assessment for executive
Directors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 April
2007. It currently consists of one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Composition of the Nomination Committee for the year ended 31
December 2020 was as follows:

Mr. Ng Ge Bun (Chairman)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. He Yi
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Role and function

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference includes those
specific duties as set out in the code provision A.5.2 of the
CG Code. Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Nomination
Committee is required, amongst other things, to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations for changes as necessary, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships, to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, and to make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. The Nomination Committee should meet at
least once a year and when the need arises.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying,
recruiting and evaluating new nominees to the Board and the
assessment of the qualifications of the Directors. The criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship
includes the candidate’s experience, professional knowledge,
integrity, time commitment and other statutory or regulatory
requirements.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy stating the key
nomination criteria and principles during nomination of Directors.
In identifying suitable candidates qualified to become Board
members, the Nomination Committee shall take into account
the Company’s current or future business model and specific
needs, the challenges and opportunities of the Company will
face, and skill set and expertise of candidates are required. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the candidates on merit
and contribution the candidate will bring to the Board with due
regard to the board diversity policy of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held and the attendance record is as follows:

Committee member
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Attendance at meeting held for

the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-_FTF+-A=T-HLEE
FRBfTER 2 HER

Mr. Ng Ge Bun
REWEE

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

BKERE

Mr. Tam Sun Wing

BT E

Mr. He Yi

BEE

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board, it had also discussed the policy for nomination
of Directors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to protect shareholder’s interest. To
do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogue with shareholders
to communicate with them and encourage their participation through
annual general meetings or other general meetings.

Registered shareholders are notified by post for the shareholders’
meetings. The notice of meeting contains the agenda, the proposed
resolutions and a postal voting form.

Any duly registered shareholder from time to time is entitled to attend
the annual and special general meetings, provided that their shares have
been recorded in the register of members of the Company (Bye-law 66).

Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting may complete
and return to the Share Registrar the proxy form enclosed with the notice
of meeting to give proxy to their representatives, another shareholder or
Chairman of the meetings.

Shareholders or investors can enquire by sending their enquiries to the
Company through the following means:

Hotline no. © (852) 2804-2221

By post . 28th Floor, Chinachem Century Tower,

178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Shareholder(s) can by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company to require a special general meeting be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. To raise
such requisition, the shareholder(s) must have held at the date of deposit
of such requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying right to vote at general meetings of the Company
(Bye-law 58).

The meeting so requisitioned shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
requisition deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with section 74(3)
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (Bye-law 58).

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

The Company Secretary of Kai Yuan Holdings Limited

28th Floor, Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Email . enquiry@kaiyuanholdings.com
Telephone Number . (852) 2804-2221
Facsimile Number : (852) 2723-8571

The company secretary will forward the shareholders’ enquiries and

concerns to the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT GENERAL MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

Subject to Section 79 of The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, it shall be
the duty of the Company, on the requisition in writing of (i) any number
of members representing not less than one twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii) not less than
one hundred members, at the expense of the requisitionists unless the
Company otherwise resolves:

(a) to give to members of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and

(b) to circulate to members of the Company entitled to have notice
of any general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

Subject to Section 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of the Bermuda, notice
of any such intended resolution duly signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned (the requisitionist(s)), shall be deposited at the registered
office of the Company not less than six weeks before the meeting (in
the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution); and not less
than one week before the meeting (in the case of any other requisition)
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in sending the notice and circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder concerned.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements in accordance with the
requirements under the provisions as stated in Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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AUDITORS REMUNERATION

It is the auditors’ responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those financial statements and to report their opinion
solely to the Company, as a body, in accordance with the Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the
auditors’ report.

Apart from the provision of annual audit services, the Group's external
auditors also provided interim review of the Group’s results and taxation
advisory service of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Ernst & Young, the external
auditors provided following services to the Group:

T
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Audit services
Taxation services

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Audit Committee assisted the Board to perform its duties to maintain
an effective and sound internal control system for the Group. The Audit
Committee reviewed the Group's procedures and workflow for the
financial, operational and compliance, and also the risk assessment and its
initiatives for business risks management and control. Recommendations
will also be put forward to the Board for consideration and approval.
The Group has an internal audit function. During the Year, the Company
engaged an independent internal control consultant to carry out review
on risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
review report had been presented to the Audit Committee to review, and
nothing had come to the Audit Committee’s or the Board's attention to
believe that risk management and internal control systems of the Group
were inadequate or ineffective. Please refer to the section headed “Risk
Management and Internal Control Report” for further details.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR

THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities and the Company has
established a policy on the handling and dissemination of inside
information (“Inside Information”). The inside information policy concerns
the handling and the dissemination of the Inside Information as follows:

Handling of Inside Information

1. an officer of the Company with appropriate skills has been
assigned to identify any potential Inside Information and to
escalate any such Inside Information to the attention of the Board;

2. the Company should, as soon as reasonably practicable after
any Inside Information has come to our knowledge, disclose the
Inside Information to the public, unless the Inside Information falls
within any of the safe harbours as provided in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and

3. before the Inside Information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company should ensure that the Inside Information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Board believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Company should immediately disclose
the Inside Information to the public.

Dissemination of Inside Information

Inside Information will be announced promptly through the websites
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.com.hk) and the Company
(www.kaiyuanholdings.com).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, the company secretary for the year ended
31 December 2020, was a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The company secretary
reported to the Board and had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRES

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

To enhance its transparency, the Company encourages dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts. Extensive information about the
Company’s activities is provided in its interim and annual reports,
which are sent to shareholders and interested parties. The Company's
news releases, announcements and publications are circulated timely,
to all major news media. The same materials are also available on the
Company's website. Media briefings are organized when necessary
to relay details of the Group's latest business initiatives and market
development plans. These activities keep the public aware of the Group’s

REEBR
RBE=F=FF+=A=+ AILER"
AR B 2 AR A

RIBIERAE ARARGEARBREER
DMEBBE - PHRERFREEAAAE
BZHEEN  FRRESEFETRERE
HBET - ARAIEQERAMAEEZHHE
REZERHER 25 RTY - BEERT
ARARRZBURE - KRFEMBERE
TEEERE  BBRAKE KN EBTE
EMZHRTERE - HWEERHSABRAMBAE
Bz EBIREFREAE -

activities and foster effective communication.

RRE-F-FET A=+ ALTE
ARTRETATRRAS :

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the following shareholders
meeting was held by the Company:

Date Venue Type of Meeting Particulars Voting at Meeting
= bk ezga B3 BLETRR
28 May 2020 Board Room, Level 1, Annual General Meeting 1. To receive and consider audited financial By Poll

South Pacific Hotel,
23 Morrison Hill Road,
Wanchai Hong Kong

statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the corresponding reports of the
Directors and auditors

2. Tore-elect Directors and to authorise the Board
to fix their remuneration

3. Tore-appoint Emst & Young as the auditors of
the Company and authorise the Board to fix
their remuneration

4. To approve the general mandates to issue and
repurchase shares of the Company

5. To approve the refreshment of scheme mandate
limit under the share option scheme

e e 323 BREFERRILENY KRREFAS . FERERBE_FT-NFt-A=t-B RE
RAZTN\E  EFEE-2IEE Rz EERIHRAAHENESS

EERGHAREE
2 ERESRREESCETESME
3. BREKEHNEHAMRAAARAZENR
RREEZeETEEMe
4 BE—REENAZTREEARRRD
5. WAERHZE A ARERS
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AN\ AL fsiE /s
TEERRES
FINANCIAL CALENDAR FOR 2021 —E_-FH¥AR
Event Date/Proposed Date
= BHlZEBTHY
Announcement of 2020 annual results Late March 2021
N _EF2FHEE —E-—F=ZAK
Annual General Meeting Around May 2021
RRBAFRE —E-_—FRALKA
Announcement of 2021 interim result Late August 2021
N T - —FrhHAELE 2 —FN\AE
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R - HERERRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Kai Yuan Holdings Limited (the “Kai Yuan” or “Company” and its
subsidiaries (collectively refer as the “Group” or “We") are pleased to
present the 2020 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report
(the “Report”) which outlines our approaches, strategies and practices
in relation to the sustainability development. We carry out our business
in a responsible manner such that we create long-term values for our
stakeholders and contribute to make the world a better place.

This Report covered the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
(the "Reporting Period”). This Report mainly focuses on our core business
segment — hotel operation of Paris Marriott Hotel in Paris, France (the
“Hotel” or the “Paris Marriott Hotel”).

This Report has been prepared in accordance with disclosure
requirements of the ESG reporting guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

We sincerely welcome your comments and suggestions with regard to
this Report and our sustainability performance. Please feel free to provide
your comments by email to enquiry@kaiyuanholdings.com.

Stakeholder engagement

Engagement with stakeholders helps us find the right direction in
sustainability. We maintain ongoing dialogues with our stakeholders
(including but not limited to hotel guests, employees, shareholders,
suppliers, community, governance and regulatory bodies) such that we
actively collect their views to boost the growth of both the Group and
benefit our stakeholders.

We identify and prioritise issues that our stakeholders consider significant
to formulate the foundation to our ESG objectives and the scope of our
ESG reporting. We communicate with our stakeholders both formally and
informally. It enables us to recognise our own strengths and weaknesses
to better sharpen our business strategies to respond to their needs
and expectations, anticipate risks and strengthen key relationships. The
information collected throughout the stakeholder engagement process
serves as an underlying basis for the structure of this Report. We will
continue to seek ways to step up our effort on stakeholder engagement
and review the effectiveness constantly.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. OUR RESPONSES TO CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC

In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have
taken various precautionary measures at workplace to minimise the
risk of contacting and spreading virus and safeguard the health of
our employees and guests. Our hotel manager have made several
enhancements to the cleaning practices throughout the hotel area and in
guest rooms during operation.

These include:

Enhanced Public Space Cleaning: We have increased the frequency
of cleaning and disinfection, particularly in areas with high traffic
including restrooms, elevators, and escalators.

Public facility: Hand sanitizing stations are being installed at hotel
entrances, at our front desks, our elevator banks, and meeting
spaces. Signage in public spaces will remind Marriott guests to
maintain social distancing.

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE): Staff members must wear PPE
(e.g. face coverings, gloves, etc.) based on the activities they are
performing and directions from the local authorities. Guests are
welcome to wear personal face coverings.

Electrostatic Spraying: We are utilising enhanced technologies,
including electrostatic sprayers with hospital-grade disinfectants,
to support our already rigorous cleanliness protocols.

Room Amenities: Every guest room is thoroughly cleaned and
disinfected prior to arrival of visitors. In-room coffee makers are
not available, but guests can request contactless coffee delivery.
Disinfectant wipes are also available in the room for every arriving
guest as well as upon request.

RIR - HERERRE

A. BRPEERFEZRNRITHES
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The hotel manager have also improved food and beverage hygiene by
stepping up the sanitary measures. A sanitary measures contactless and
paperless QR code solution for food and beverage orderings is adopted
for any outlets. Any room service and take-away items are individually
wrapped.

On the other hand, we are determined to provide a safe working
environment for our employees. With this regard, our hotel manager have
implemented good hygiene and infection control practices, including:

Provide workers with latest education and training on COVID-19
risk factors and protective behaviors (e.g. maintain of social
distancing, cough etiquette, and care of PPE).

Minimise contact among workers, clients, and customers by
replacing face-to-face meetings with virtual communications if
feasible.

Restrict the number of personnel entering certain areas, such as
lift.

Provide workers with PPE needed to keep them safe while
performing their jobs.

Facilitate air ventilation in the work environment.

Increase the frequency of cleaning and disinfection in workplace.

The Hotel had been closed following the imposition of the first national
lockdown in Paris since 17 March 2020 and still closed as at the date of
this Report. Given first quarter of the year 2021 has been the traditional
low season even before the COVID-19 pandemic, we have delayed the
re-opening of the Hotel to May 2021, subject to the then circumstances.
We will stay resilient to ensure our business continuity during this
unprecedented and challenging pandemic.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. ENVIRONMENTAL

B1. Emissions

We recognise potential impact to the environment during the course
of our operation and are committed to operate our businesses in an
environmentally responsible manner. It is our policy to minimise emission
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharge into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. We work
closely with the hotel manager of the Hotel to restraint emission and
continuously to improve our environmental performance. The Hotel
conserves resources by reducing unnecessary waste of electricity and
water at source, and enhance environmental awareness of hotel staff and
guests by providing training, warm reminders and during our interaction
with our guests. We also communicate our policies and requirements
toward environmental protection to our contractors and suppliers to
collaborate their effort in environmental protection.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, we did not notice any non-compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharge into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

Our major source of emission includes (1) greenhouse gas which is
generated from town gas and electricity; (2) garbage generated by our
hotel guests and office; and (3) food waste generated during our food and
beverage services at the Paris Marriott Hotel.

RIR - HERERRE
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B1. BEHYD
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FrEE A 2 513 i }(3) Paris Marriott Hotel 7E #2
HERRB 2 BEPMEE 2B

Emission Type 2020 Unit
BB R —E°BRF B
Air emissions’

B

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) 832 kg
E=( ) Niy
Sulphur oxides (SOx) 0.03 kg
mealh NIy
Particulate matter (PM) 0.001 kg
RIFRF AF
{ The air emission and greenhouse gas emission is calculated based on 1 BRI E MR ERBEBHENE IR IE R B

the methodology suggested in the “Steps for ESG Reporting — Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Unit
By

Emission Type 2020
HRIESR —ECEF
Greenhouse gas emissions’
BERBHKE
Total (Scope 1 & Scope 2) 322.48
wiH(BE - REE—
Scope 1 347
#HE—
Scope 2 319.01
HE—
Intensity (per room night) 35.32
ZE(BREZ®R)
Intensity (per gross floor area) 18.20

BE(SREmE)

Non-hazardous waste

BEZEEY
Total waste generated 216.64
FTEARBZENEE
Glass 69.30
W
Food waste 6.98
BEBRIR
Other general refuse 140.36
H i —AREEY)
Intensity (per room night) 12.23
ZE(BREEZ®R)
Intensity (per gross floor area) 3532
RE(FEEEE)
Waste to landfill 140.36
BAEEEHRERZEY
Waste to recycle 76.28
1) 1L

Note 1: We did not generate hazardous waste (as defined by regulations in France).

Note 2: All food waste and glass bottle were collected for recycling.

Note 3: Amount of other general refuse was estimated by considering the volume
of rubbish collection bin and the frequency of collection.

Note 4: The amount of paper waste was unavailable in 2020 due to pandemic
disruption.

Note 5: The Hotel had been temporarily closed due to the outbreak of COVID-19
during 17 March to 31 December 2020 resulted in the significant decrease
in air emission, greenhouse gas emission and non-hazardous waste.

! The air emission and greenhouse gas emission is calculated based on
the methodology suggested in the “Steps for ESG Reporting — Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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RE - HERELARE

Measures to handle waste, mitigate emissions and waste and RIZEERY) - RUEHERE R EEY N ERE R

results achieved BRR
Actively manage the use of electricity to reduce wastes that create . BREERE  UWRADTREREER
indirect greenhouse gas emission. ERBHERZBEEY)
Works collaboratively with different wastes recycling partners to . EARNEEZEY RN A EREEE
trim down the tonnage. BOBEEMEE -
Recycle organic wastes with a bio-wastes partners to turn wastes . HAEYBERMSIERHSEQ KA
into compost and biogas. FEEY) - SEEMEK SRR KA
K, ©
Recycle used oil, lamps, batteries, metal, plastic, glass and paper o BB ETRA @Hﬁl”&ﬂé\ﬂf » 3] Uy RE
through working with different recycling companies. HRE B 28 BB BB
R ARGk o
B2. Use of Resources B2. ERfE /A
1. Energy 1. B8R
During the course of our business, we consume an array of resources EREMEEEBNBRET  BMERZEE
ranging from electricity, water, town gas to food ingredients used in B AE K ERAZAREBHREOER

our food and beverage services. It is our policy to monitor each aspect Mo BPNBRERRYVERE—EER @ #
closely to make sure we are operating in a cost effective, sustainable and REMAETHARZ  AIFEEREEBE
responsible manner. During the Reporting Period, we have improved EOFAELEER - EREHERN - BRE
our energy management by implementing a number of energy saving M— R EREIE A B ERER » HIk

initiatives to optimise our usage of resources: ETRRERE
Resource Type 2020 Unit
AREE —E-BF B

Energy consumption

FEEE
In total 2,421,875.00  kWh
et FTEB
In electricity 939,988.00  kWh
E TELE
In steam production 1,005,771.00  kWh
KREE F R
In chilled water 459,000.00  kWh
RIK Rl
In non-renewable fuel 17,116.00  kWh
SER AN F B
Intensity (per room night) 26529 kWh/room night
ZE(BREZ®) TRE BHES®
Intensity (per gross floor area) 136.68  kWh/m2
HE(SREMmE) FRE,FHAK
Note 5: The Hotel was temporarily closed due to the outbreak of COVID-19 since s ZBEB_T_TF=A T+ tHE
17 March 2020 resulted in the significant decrease in energy consumption. COVID-19R B M E R RAR - BEFEREE RNIE
e
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Energy efficiency initiatives and results achieved
Turn off unnecessary lighting and air-conditioning.

Educate and inspire associates and guests to conserve and preserve.

Set and maintain standard indoor temperature.

Review regularly our environmental policy and energy saving

plan.

Closely monitor on energy consumption pattern and take

necessary actions if irregular usage is noticed.

Motion detectors are installed in back office area, public area restrooms

and meeting rooms. LED lightings are installed at back offices and LED

motion sensor lightings are installed in parking staircase.

Programmable thermostats are adopted in guest rooms and

meeting facilities.

Window sensors were installed in all guest rooms to switch off air-

conditioning system when windows are opened.

2. Water

Water is a basic necessity to all livings on earth but our access to water is
limited. With rapid growth in global population and urbanisation, water
management is crucial to maintain our sustainability. For this reason, it is

our policy to upholding best practices on water management throughout

our operations. During the Reporting Period, we have improved our water
management by implementing a number of water-saving initiatives to

optimise our usage of resources:

EFREE HE KR FR 1S B R
P TEENEENRER -
HENREBHEATAREABRELD
BRE o
RERRFEEEARE °
TE AR AT IR IR R I EfgERT & o

PEREERN  UTRERTEE
%Eﬁﬁ 5 RFERERFT R /T8 ©
FERSIMPWE - ARBEEFER
CRELEIIEREE - EERHEM
ZRIDEBUREFEESEFRTE
LEDENVERVAIELE ©
FRERERGZRERATREI (BT
%%o
ERMERER %ﬁmﬁ$vu%§
FTREFRIR A R4 -

2.7k

KERZWER EFFTEEYNEATE - B
MAURANRAKIEEER - BER2KAD
SR MESMMENERER - KER
ERHRFRMOUIBEEREWUEE - F
TR RPN BEREEBEFERESR -
BIFKEREEBEZRETR - RHTEHME
W EBRE— RHNEHRKEEAEEE
TREVER - BRMEATRKERER :

Resource Type 2020 Unit

ERER —BIEF  Bf

Water consumption 592900 m?

FEKE TR
Intensity (per room night) 0.65  m3/room night
ZE(BEEE®) MHEKR/EREE%
Intensity (per gross floor area) 033 m¥m?
ZE(FRERE) TR TFFK

Chilled water for cooling system 80,559.00 m3

RANRFETE AR LK AVAY
Intensity (per room night) 8.82  m3/room night
ZE(BEEE®) MHEKR/EREE%
Intensity (per gross floor area) 455  m3/m?2
ZE(FRERE) TR K

Note 6: The Hotel was temporarily closed due to the outbreak of COVID-19 since
17 March 2020 resulted in the significant decrease in water consumption.
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Water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
Encouraging guests to save water and reuse linen and towel
during their stay.
Close monitoring on water consumption pattern and take
necessary actions if irregular usage is noticed.
Adoption of low-flow water faucets in guest rooms and common
areas.
Introduction of low-flow showerheads and tap aerators in all
guest bathrooms.
Installation of water-efficient commercial dishwasher and washing
machines (except the washing machine in the kitchen).
Installation of low-flow pre-risen spray valves in kitchen.

B3. The Environment and Natural Resources
We did not notice our operations have significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

C.SOCIAL

C1. Employment

As at 31 December 2020, we had seven employees working in Hong
Kong and Luxembourg. Employees working in our hotel (“hotel staff”) are
employed and managed by the third party hotel manager. However, we
work closely with hotel manager to ensure they have consistent policies
with us in handling employee matters and compliant with all relevant
laws and regulations in the area in which the Hotel operates.

It is our policy to value the differences between people and work
diligently in providing equal opportunity and anti-discrimination. Our
employment decision is only based on one’s working ability and disregard
their gender, race, ethnicity, sexual orientation, disability, etc. We review
our remuneration policies and packages annually to ensure our employee
are fairly treated. We grant discretionary bonuses to qualified employees
based on operation results and individual performance. Our employees
are also entitled to medical insurance, participation in the mandatory
provident fund and paid leaves.

Compliance

We were not aware of any material non-compliance with any relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, other
benefits and welfare, occupational health and safety, child and forced
labour and other laws and regulations related to employment during the
Reporting Period.
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C2. Health and safety

We believe that productivity comes from healthy workforce. It is our
policy to provide a healthy and safe working environment for our
employees. We remind our employees to increase their awareness in
occupational safety, provide them comfortable working environment and
medical benefit.

Compliance
During the Reporting Period, no work related fatalities or injuries were
recorded.

C3. Development and training

It is our policy that all new employees are required to attend orientation
training to ensure that they are familiar with our corporate values and
goals and to ensure that the employees understand their role in our
Group. Other trainings performed during the Reporting Period include
information protection, risk management, etc. Employees are also
encouraged to attend seminars relevant to their position to enhance their
work capability.

C4. Labour standards

It is our policy that we are against the usage of child and forced labour.
Our recruitment policy forbids the hiring of child or forced labour and we
will not purchase from any supplier who is doing so.

Compliance
There was no usage of child and forced labour noticed during the
Reporting Period.

C5. Supply chain management

Hotel operation involves a number of procurement categories including
furniture, fixtures and equipment, hotel amenities, ingredient for food
and beverages, office supplies and different kinds of maintenance and
professional services. It is our policy to ensure our suppliers are operating
in a sustainable manner, therefore, we work closely with hotel manager to
ensure responsible procurement is in place which is consistent with our
approach to sustainability.
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The Paris Marriott Hotel has in place a clear Supplier Code of Conduct and
Sustainability Assessment Program to provide environmental and social
guidelines to their suppliers, they work closely to push and encourage
their suppliers to ensure the Supplier’s Sustainability Policies are followed.
In environmental aspect, the Paris Marriott Hotel has followed Marriott
International’s initiatives such as removing injected molded foam
products, use sustainable seafood, use cage-free eggs, use pork free
from gestation confinement crates for pork, ensuring down and feather
products are from humane sources. Regarding social aspects, the Paris
Marriott Hotel follows Marriott's Global Employment and Human Rights
principles and expect their suppliers to have safe and secure working
environments, non-discrimination, avoid using forced and child labour.
Supplier Screening Program is in place to monitor their suppliers to work
in environmental and social responsible manner.

C6. Product Responsibility

We believe that high quality service is essential to maintain long-term
relationship with our customers. It is our policy to provide services
with impeccable quality. The Hotel has in place its own “Standard
Operation Procedures” and “Quality Assurance Program” to ensure guests
satisfaction, and all hotel staff are well trained with respective standards
and procedures to deliver high quality services. Self-audit and third party
audits are performed regularly throughout the Reporting Period to ensure
the Hotel is providing the best and consistent customer experience in
terms of service, condition, cleanliness and operations standard.

Guest satisfaction

Paris Marriott Hotel is classified and recognised as a five-star hotel by the
République Francaise (French Republic) honoring its outstanding service
standards. In addition to actively collect information to understand
customer experiences and in place of complaint handling procedures,
Paris Marriott Hotel developed a guest feedback program — internally
branded “Guest Voice”. A guest satisfaction system which integrates a
shorter, simpler guest and event satisfaction survey with social media
(reviews, posts, tweets, etc.) into a single user dashboard, enabling the
Hotel to take action on issues and concerns and facilitate a more timely
response.
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Guest safety

Our number one priority is to safeguard the well-being of both the
customers as well as the staff members. Surveillance cameras are installed
at hotel entrances and exits for security purpose. Our hotel operator also
conducts self-audit on operations and brand program regularly. Once
the hotel operator finds any non-compliance of food safety and fire/
life safety with self-audit standard, it will be resolved as soon as possible
in achieving safe operation. Apart from these, a comprehensive crisis
management plan is created to protect the Hotel and customers from
inevitable threats.

Personal data protection practice

With the EU’s General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) coming into
effect on May 25, 2018, we have worked closely with our hotel manager,
Marriott, to ensure compliance measures are in place. Our hotel manager
has undertaken a significant amount of work to ensure the Hotel is GDPR
ready. The Hotel has further strengthened their data governance and
privacy programs, as well as their centralised systems, in preparation for
the GDPR implementation. A number of specific actions including, but
not limited to, the update of procedures to ensure appropriate response
is made to individual rights requests from our guests and associates
as required under GDPR. The hotel manager has updated terms and
conditions of loyalty programs, privacy statements and notices, as well as
hotel registration cards to encompass GDPR principles. They will also ask
customer for their consent before any release of personal information if
necessary. The hotel manager has conducted holistic review of marketing
and digital processes and policies to ensure accountability and data
governance. The hotel manager has updated contracts with new privacy
language to ensure the Hotel is fully compliant with GDPR as well as other
relevant personal data privacy regulations in France.

Compliance

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
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C7. Anti-corruption

It is our policy and we believe it is of paramount importance that
businesses are conducted in accordance with applicable rules,
regulations and social standards. The virtue of integrity, honesty and
fairness have been given the highest priorities. No such rules, regulations
or standards should be traded in exchange for business benefits or even
for as small as a guest feedback.

All hotel staff are required to stringently abide by the anti-corruption
guidelines and policies of the Hotel where bribery in any form is
prohibited. In cases when breaching of anti-corruption guidelines
are spotted, disciplinary actions including immediate termination of
employment and involvement of local authorities would be taken.
Whistleblowing hotline and online channel are set up for staff to
report any extortion, money laundering, fraud, bribery and corruption.
Whistleblowers can come forward on the condition of anonymity to
protect them from retaliation.

Hotel manager will also provide trainings to hotel staff on issue of
corruption on a regular basis.

Compliance
During the Reporting Period, no legal case was filed against the Hotel or
its employee with regards to corruption issues.

C8. Community Investment
It is our policy to encourage our employees and hotel manager to
participate in and support in community services in order to lead a
healthy and balanced lifestyle.

Compliance

The hotel manager actively shared knowledge about global issues and
related topics with employees through internal newsletters in order
to promote better understanding and deeper appreciation for the
contributions and struggles of people and cultures different from one'’s
own and thus encourage them to participate in various community
activities.

The Group will also participate in community and public welfare activities
whenever possible.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We believe that sound internal control, risk management and compliance
systems are foundation for embracing good corporate governance. The
Group is committed to upholding high standards of business integrity,
honesty, ethics and transparency in our operations. For more detail
of our corporate governance practices, please refer to our Corporate
Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and
review a sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems. An enterprise risk management (“ERM”) framework is in place to
implement risk management and internal control effectively.

Our risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the Company’s
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against material misstatements or losses.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Effective risk management resides at all levels of the Group. Staff in
different business units identify and manage risks during their daily
operation, the management is responsible for identifying, assessing
and responding to risks at strategic level. Reporting to the Board, the
Audit Committee reviews and monitors major risks and effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems. Through this top down
and bottom up approach, together with independent review by the
independent internal control consultant, assisted the Group to manage
its major risks in an effective manner.

Risk Management Structure
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Oversees the risk management and internal control systems;

Determines the Group'’s business strategies and risk appetite;

BEAKE 2 EHREEMARAZE

Reviews at least annually the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

systems; and
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Monitors the risk management and internal control systems in an on-going manner.
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Audit Committee
BExEEE

control systems;

Oversees the evaluation and improvement process of risk management and internal
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Reviews the Group's risk register; and
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Reviews and approves the internal control review plan and review results.
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Risk Management Structure

[ B B IR R A

Management and staff

EEENET

Internal audit function and
external auditors
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Identify and monitor all risks relevant to daily operations of the Group;

MplkEREAEEARRGERARIAARER

Report to the Board and the Audit Committee on the risks identified including strategic,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks and its changes during the Year;
MEFGRERZESERSHIERNER - BFERE - 28 - UK - BHRKk
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Implement and execute and on-going monitor risk management and internal control
processes; and
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Develop and execute appropriate action plans to mitigate the risk-identified and to
resolve material internal control defects.
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Outsource the internal audit function to an independent internal control consultant;
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Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems;
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The scope of the internal control review is risk-based and is reviewed by the Audit
Committee;
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Communicate review result directly to the Audit Committee; and
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External auditors are also able to communicate internal control issues they noticed
during their audit to the Audit Committee directly.
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The risk management process defined the procedures for identifying,
assessing, responding and monitoring risks and their changes. The
management discusses regularly with each operating functions to collect
their views towards the risks they have identified at operation level, and
to strengthen their understanding to risk management at the Group’s
strategic view level to foster two way communication. Risk identification
is a continuous and interactive process, major risks are communicate
between the bottom and the top.

Define risk
universe

FE 2 B

Monitoring and
report changes

B2 I 4R 5 )

Mitigate risks
B (R B

Significant risks are classified into one of the four categories: strategic,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance. After identified all
relevant risks, the management assesses the potential impact and
possibilities of the risks and prioritise the risks, appropriate internal control
measures are then developed to mitigate the risks. Also, effectiveness
of internal control measures and changes of risks are monitored in an
on-going manner and are communicated to the Board and the Audit
Committee to allow their monitoring at the top level.
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MAIN FEATURES OF OUR RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Maintain an effective internal control system at operational level

Establish clear internal control policies and procedures, clearly
define the responsibilities, authorities and accountabilities of each
key positions;

Establish code of conduct, explain the Group's requirements on
integrity and ethical value to all staff;

Establish whistle blowing mechanism, encourage employees to
report incidents of misconduct or fraud;

Establish appropriate level of information technology access rights,
avoid leakage of price sensitive information; and

Establish insider information disclosure policy, including reporting
channels and responsible person of disclosure, unified response
to external enquiries and obtain advices from professionals or the
Stock Exchange, if necessary.

In evaluating the effectiveness of internal control systems, the Board has
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

On-going risk monitoring at risk management level

The management identifies and mitigates major risks according to the risk
management process, the identified risks are summarised in risk register
and submitted to the Board and the Audit Committee for their review
together with a 3-year internal control review plan to enable the Board
and the Audit Committee effectively monitor major risks of the Group and
how the risks are managed. Major risks relevant to the Group are shown
on pages 51 to 53 of this annual report.
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Independent review

The Group had appointed an independent internal control consultant
to conduct an internal control review' for the Year, the scope of review
has covered the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020. The
results of the internal control review has been submitted to the Audit

Committee.

The management had established remediation and improvement plan
for internal control weaknesses identified. Nothing had come to the Audit
Committee’s or the Board’s attention to believe that risk management
and internal control systems of the Group were inadequate or ineffective.

! The internal control review performed by the internal control consultant does
not constitute an assurance engagement made in accordance with the Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing, Hong Kong Standards on Review or Hong Kong
Standards on Assurance Engagement issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors present their annual report and audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries comprise hotel operation and money lending.
The principal activities and other particulars of subsidiaries of the Group
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Paris Marriott Hotel from the hotel operation
segment had been temporarily closed during the coronavirus pandemic
since 17 March 2020, due to the occurrence of the coronavirus pandemic
at the beginning of the Year in France and had no signs of subsidence
at the end of the Year. The Group recorded an impairment loss of
approximately HK$333.6 million as the result of the temporary closure of
the Paris Marriott Hotel.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group's hotel operation segment and money lending segment as
determined by the Board. The content below is not intended to be an
exhaustive list of all the risks and uncertainties that may arise.

Hotel Operation

(i) Operational risks
Notwithstanding the active monitoring and supervision of
performance of the Hotel by the Group, daily operations of the
Hotel are delegated to the hotel manager, pursuant to the hotel
management agreement signed with third party hotel manager.
Dependent on the ability of hotel manager, the failure of hotel
manager to manage the hotel in an efficient and effective manner
could have a material adverse effect on financial results of the
Group.

Furthermore, if any of the hotel management agreements
are terminated prior to their expiration, we may experience
disruptions to our operations, and will then be required to seek for
replacement of hotel manager.

Finally, the Hotel is operated under brand name of the hotel
manager. As a result, the continuation on revenue generation
relies on the success of the hotel manager in maintaining
reputation and enhancing the recognition of their brand.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Competition

The Group owns a Hotel in France in which the hospitality
industry is highly competitive due to ongoing supply of new
hotels and renovation of existing hotel properties. The intensity
of competition is affected by a range of factors including political
stability of country where the Hotel is located, regional and global
economic conditions, convenience of location, interior design
and amenities offered, as well as travel pattern of customers. The
Group is committed to offer the best of our services and hotel
experience to our guests.

Economic and market risks

The Group’s business is exposed to risks of unfavourable
movements in the global and regional economies and financial
markets, in particular to the markets where the Hotel is located.
Change in economic conditions would lead to recession, inflation,
deflation, currency fluctuations, availability of financing, interest
rates and other factors that are beyond control of the Group.
Occurrence of any of the above may reduce revenue, increase
operating costs and lower asset value of the Group.

Terrorism, diseases and natural disasters

The Group’s business could be adversely impacted by acts of God,
wars, terrorist attacks, riots, diseases and other events beyond our
control. The Group cannot predict the occurrence of these events.
An increased threat of terrorism would affect travel patterns and
reduce the number of travellers of different categories. All of the
above events would eventually adversely affect the business and
financial performance of our the Hotel.

Due to the outbreak and the widespread of the coronavirus
disease globally, the Paris Marriott Hotel was temporarily closed
since 17 March 2020. As a result, the revenue contributed by the
Paris Marriott Hotel was significantly decreased.

Indebtedness and interest rates

The Group maintains certain level of indebtedness to partly
finance the hotel property investment. The indebtedness level
could increase the vulnerability of the Group to adverse general
economic or industry conditions, and restrict the Group from
making strategic acquisitions or taking advantage of business
opportunities. Hence, increase in interest rates could materially
and adversely affect the results of the Group.
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(vi)

(vii)

During the year, there are certain financial covenants in respect
of the Group’s 5-year bank borrowings of EUR175,000,000
(equivalent to HK$1,625,806,000) with original maturity date on
14 October 2024 not fulfilled. The non-compliance of covenants
may result in the relevant banks to demand for the repayment
of borrowings before its maturity dates, and hence the bank
borrowings has been presented as current liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020. The
Directors consider that the Group has taken various measures and
will have adequate funds available to enable it to operate as a
going concern.

Foreign exchange fluctuations

The Group has hotel operation in France in which revenue and
expenses are denominated mainly in Euro, Renminbi and Hong
Kong dollars. Therefore, the Group’s financial results are exposed
to foreign exchange risk as a result of fluctuation in currency
exchange rates.

Information technology systems

The Group is dependent on information technology systems
provided by the hotel manager and by other third parties to
monitor and operate the day-to-day operations of the Hotel.
These systems include booking, check-in/check-out, management
of rooms and collection of payment etc. Any disruption of these
systems could result in the Hotel failing to operate. Furthermore,
operations of the above systems are also subject to information
security and cyber threats. The Group together with the hotel
manager will consistently review, maintain or upgrade these
information technology systems when required to minimize
system down-time and defend against cyber threats.

Money Lending

(i

Credit risk

A credit risk is the risk of default on a loan that may arise from
borrowers failing to meet loan repayment obligation when due.
To control credit risk, the Group requires borrowers to provide
sufficient collaterals before mortgage loans will be granted.
We will also regularly monitor and review our loan portfolio.
Notwithstanding these measures, the Group might still suffer
from financial loss if the economic climate in Hong Kong changes
adversely and abruptly so that net proceeds from disposal of
collaterals might become insufficient to cover mortgage loan
granted and loan interests receivable.

(vi)

(vii)
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Environmental Policies

We are attentive to consumption of natural resources and reduction of
pollution during the course of managing our businesses. It is our goal
to minimise our environmental impacts through recycling of materials,
encouragement of resources savings and reduction of wastes. The Group
is committed to ensure our compliance with relevant environmental
protection laws and regulations. We also require our business partners to
comply with relevant environmental protection laws and regulations. For
further details on performance of the Group on environmental aspects
during the Year, please refer to our Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 34 to 45.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Group requires operations of the Company and its subsidiaries to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations in the territories in which
we operate. During the Year, the Board was not informed of any events
relating to violation of laws and regulations.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group has in place remuneration policies to ensure provision of
adequate rewards to employees with recognised experience of the
assigned roles and duties. The Group also provides other benefits
including discretionary bonuses, mandatory provident fund scheme,
medical insurance scheme and participation to share option scheme.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good relationship with our
customers. We have in place a mechanism to keep track on customers’
feedback and identify areas for improvement. Customer’s complaints
once acknowledged and reported will be dealt with timely, fairly and
diligently.

To ensure efficient delivery of quality products and services to our
customers, the Group recognises the importance of maintaining close
and long-term relationship with suppliers. The Group will ensure fairness
when conducting procurement activities and a consistent balance on
qualities of products and services against value-for-money.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the audited financial
statement on pages 70 to 179.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil)
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Dividend Policy

The Board may from time to time propose the payment of a dividend,
if any, with respect to the shares of the Company listed on the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the following dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”).
Subject to the relevant laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws, dividend may
be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or period as:
(i) interim dividend;

(if) final dividend;

(iii) special dividend; and

(iv) any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

Any final dividend proposed by the Board for any financial year shall be
subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

The declaration of a dividend is subject to the discretion of the Board,
which will take into account the following factors, in no particular order of
importance, when considering the payment of a dividend:

(a) the financial results of the Group;

(b) the cash flow situation and future cash requirements of the Group;

(Q) the general business conditions and strategies of the Group;

(d) the future capital expenditure or debt settlement requirements of

the Group;
(e) future operations and earnings of the Group;
6) the taxation consideration;

(9) the statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

(h) any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

Given the fluctuating nature of earnings or loss of the Group, the
Board does not recommend setting a target dividend payout ratio, or
maintaining a consistent dividend payment over time. There can be no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific
period.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate is set out on page 180. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the Year are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF

LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in note 44 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2020 are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the Year, the Company did not make any charitable contributions
(2019: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 21% of the total sales for the Year, sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 9%. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 43%
of the total purchases for the Year, purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 13% of the total purchases
for the Year.
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None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's
five largest customers or suppliers disclosed above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Xue Jian (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

The Directors, save and except for the Chairman (if any), are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-
laws.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 11 to 12 of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting had a service contract which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

Subject to shareholders” approval at annual general meetings authorising
the Board, remuneration of the Directors are determined by the Board
with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provides that the Directors for the time being acting in
relation to any of the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done. The Company
has arranged for insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities to
provide appropriate cover for legal actions brought against its Directors
and officers arising out of corporate activities of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director or any entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party subsisting during the Year or at the end of the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
The Group entered into or maintained following management contracts
for its Hotel during the Year.

Paris Marriott Hotel

The Group maintained a management agreement (dated 16 June 1995),
as amended from time to time (the “Marriott Agreement”) in relation to
management of Paris Marriott Hotel, with Marriott Hotels Manager France
SAS (“Marriott”). The Marriott Agreement shall continue for thirty years
after 1 January 2000. Marriott has option to renew the Marriott Agreement
on the same terms and conditions for each of three successive periods of
ten years.

The Group signed a hotel asset management services contract with
Jones Lang LaSalle Hotels & Hospitality Group in relation to the Paris
Marriott Hotel on 2 September 2019. The contract period commenced on
1 November 2019 and will expire on 31 October 2022.

No Director had interests in the above contracts.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The interests and short positions of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Long positions — The following represents shares to be allotted
and issued upon exercise of share options granted to the relevant
Director
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EEfA 51 HERGHE
Mr. Xue Jian Beneficial owner 127,780,000
BT Em#EA A
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen Beneficial owner 10,000,000
EAKESLAE EmEAA
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive has an B EXPFIEEZEEIN  SEERFTETHRAER

interest or a short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section titled “Directors’ and chief executive's
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above and in the section titled “Share option scheme” below, at no
time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Further details of the
Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to the audited financial statements.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s listed securities.

PERSONS HOLDING 5% OR MORE INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of Percentage of
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Name of shareholders Capacity shares held capital
Fr¥s HE T
BREHHE 14 HERYE RAB DL
Mr. Du Shuang Hua ' Interest of controlled corporation 708,000,000 5.54%
THEEEESE A SN o
Happy Sino International Limited ' Beneficial interest 708,000,000 5.54%
BamtEs
Mr. Zhang He Yi' Beneficial interest 1,400,000,000 10.96%
SRAIZESEAE Bt
Ms. Lu Xiaomei 2 Interest of controlled corporation 753,190,000 5.89%
BRI RL 12 REEHERE 2 R
Sincere Profit Group Limited 2 Beneficial interest 753,190,000 5.89%
B
Ga Leung Investment Company Limited 3 Beneficial Interest 1,866,666,666 14.61%
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Number of Percentage of

ordinary issued share
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held capital
PR HE®T
BREEAB &4 ZRERHE BRABDL
Mr. Sun Yong Feng ? Interest on controlled corporation 1,866,666,666 14.61%
TROKIE S 43 THEE 2
Beneﬂoal interest 133,000,000 1.04%
Bt
Ms. Meng Ya * Interest of spouse 1,999,666,666 15.65%
mAE L B
Mr. Hu Yishi Beneficial interest 1,300,000,000 10.17%
HAER L4 Bt
! Mr. Du Shuang Hua and Mr. Zhang He Yi beneficially owns 85% and 15% ! MEFELERRNELXEDNERESR
interest respectively in the issued share capital of Happy Sino International Happy Sino International Limited B % 17 %
Limited. Mr. Du Shuang Hua is deemed to be interested in the 708,000,000 AR85% K 15% s  BIEFEH NS 0
shares held by Happy Sino International Limited under the provisions of 63+ M & EE S A AR A R Happy Sino
the SFO. International Limited$¥ A 708,000,000 A% A%
DA o
2 Ms. Lu Xiaomei beneficially owns 100% interest in the issued share capital 2 ¥ /)N 22 = & %= # A Sincere Profit Group
of Sincere Profit Group Limited. Ms. Lu Xiaomei is deemed to be interested L\m|tedE§"¥ﬁHx$100%ka BIEES K
in the 753,190,000 shares held by Sincere Profit Group Limited under the BREIRBIE - B /IMELZ TR AR Sincere
provisions of the SFO. Proflt Group Limited # A 2 753,190,000 % I%
AR -
g Mr. Sun Yong Feng beneficially owns 100% interest in the issued capital 3 FokBEEERRARRIZFEABRATE R
of Ga Leung Investment Company Limited. Mr. Sun Yong Feng is deemed FTRRZAN100% 2  1RIR 3 5 K B & 1601 M
to be interested in the 1,866,666,666 shares held by Ga Leung Investment X BKIEEEERARERIEEGRA

Company Limited under the provisions of the SFO.

Ms. Meng Ya is the spouse of Mr. Sun Yong Feng. Ms. Meng Ya is deemed 4
to be interested in the 1,999,666,666 shares in which Mr. Sun Yong Feng is
interested.

5 21,866,666,666 M A% 17 AP B S o

EWL T BFEKBEE S - T
RARFKIE L LB R 21,999,666,666
B AD PR HERS o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other B EXFTHEEEIN R _ZTF+ A
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests =t+—H BEANAT(ARRAESREE
or short positions are set out in the section titled “Directors’ and chief TTHABRIN  BEMEB CERIOARH
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares REXTEEZREZTHRAERKSD « BERK
and debentures” above, had any interest or short position in the shares MEkEHFzBERRAR | —8)RAEARF 2K
or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded DR GO B RIEE %?&Hﬁ =L
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO. 3361K 2 HRTER TRk 2 RSB ©
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEGHRES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 33 of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company did not have any connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions which were subject to
the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules. The related party
transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the audited financial statements
did not fall under the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions in the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that
the Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31 December 2020 and as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period
are set out in note 43 to the audited financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Emolument policy on the remuneration of the Directors and the
employees of the Group is reviewed periodically and determined by
reference to market terms, the Group’s performance and individual
qualifications and performance. The Company has adopted the Scheme
as an incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
Scheme are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young (“EY”). EY
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of EY as auditors of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Law Wing Chi, Stephen
29 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EY:

To the shareholders of Kai Yuan Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kai Yuan
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 70 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the financial statements which indicates
that as at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$621,740,000. This condition, along with other matters as set forth
in note 2.1, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt about the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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RKERTRISEAN Tel BE: +852 2846 9888
FEPIRAEE 158 Fax {E.E.: +852 2868 4432
FIEKRE 2212 ey.com

BRARERERATARR
(RBRETMAZZBRAF])

=R

Az BED (AT 8 [ B JET TR F 708
EFREAERRERARAB(ERRA])
REMBAR (5 [ E5E])NKRE MR
xR UGEMBERREER_Z_TF =
A=t —HNGEaM BN RERREEZA
LFENGEARRER  GA2mlaER - 4
ERDEEHRNGEARETRER UREA
I HmRNE  BRIESHRRME -

BFRE  GEVERREBES B
NE([BALHRAE ) BHNCE B IBR
SB[ HBMBEREEL D EENAFi
ki EEER-_Z_ZF+=-_A=+—H
MEAMBRAM EEEEEZHALEE
NG BRARKABEESRE  YEER
EBCREHERD B BER T ZERY -

FRBEEE CEATREEN

BM%sE BTIEIMBHRERME21 0 35
B BESEBER-_Z-TF+-A=+—H0H
BB EEEEA621,740,00008 7T © 15 NER
M2 1 TS EtETER RN FEEANET
A& Alges BSERELEMENENX
BARME - RMVERLEEETER -

RRNVER
BARBEEE ST ASRMO(EEET
AN & BFEER ) ETERET - HARZ
ERBETNEEEARRSE [RHIRFSFE
HBEHRRARENE ML —EPFL - RBE
BEETMAEH [EXSTAERE TR ([T
A1) BABIR BE5E - A2ERTR
BiITHAMBREE - HAIEE - BAIAES
METBREERACMEELSRMANERZ
STER -

7

e

IH

BIRZERAERAT | 2020 FFHR 63



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
B EEN R EF

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

In addition to the matters described in the Material Uncertainty related to
going concern, we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

BREEH
RRETERERERMNZEEHE - B8
BAHMGEEVBERANEITRSEENS
He BHAEBRFEBGEAVBHRRILRL AR
ARNREELEE B TSHELEHE
HEBNER o TXHIBPIWEFS AR
BEEBERENER -

BRBEBREREZEATHEEMBENS
BN BPIERABREEE TXAEEERS
FAsEEAT SR ©

BPCBITARSE [RHMFA 456
HABAEMEE | — PR ET - &8
REFUEEHEMEENEE - Bt - BHFINT
SATERRNTEREMAFGERE MBHRER
FEERERRANERMEONEF o A
WITEAEF(BERE TR EBEMAITHIRER
FFMSIER - REEMARA M B RERAERT
ERIROLERE -

statements.

Key audit matter

BREEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANETNNEERARETSH

Impairment assessment of the French hotel property

BB G YR 2 R E

The Group had the French hotel property with a carrying
amount of HK$2,648 million, represented 65% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2020. As the carrying
amount of the Group’s net assets was higher than the Group’s
market capitalization, the Group involved external experts
to perform an impairment assessment on the French hotel
property based on an income approach to estimate the fair
value less costs of disposal. This matter was significant to our
audit because the balance of the French hotel property was
material to the consolidated financial statements. Further, the
assessment process was complex and involved significant

judgements.
RZZB_ZF+_A=+—H X EBE5EZEEREES

2,648,0000008 T 2 ABIBE M - BEf BEEEBEE
65% ° AR BEBFEEZEEESR BEEBZER

mE - BRERPIINEERRBRAEREBEEEDE
EITRERNE - EERIFERELERAN o L EHHE
MEABEE  RAREZREEYX 2 EHREES MR
REBEZ - Wi - SHEBRREM - S RERHE -

The directors of the Company concluded that, based on the
assessment result, impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment of HK$334 million has been recognised for the year.
Related disclosures about the impairment of non-financial
assets are included in note 3 and 14 to the financial
statements.

ERRIEFRLE  ANTEAER  AFEEHIWE - K
B5 I 5% &R (B &5 18334,000,0008 7T - BHFESRMEERE
Z BB RN R R M s 14 o
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Our procedures included, among others, assessing the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of its external experts
and involving our valuation experts to assist us in evaluating
the methodologies used by the Group’s external experts
to determine the fair value less costs of disposal as at 31
December 2020 and testing the assumptions, in particular, the
average daily rate per room, occupancy rate, discount rate,
long-term growth rate and terminal capitalisation rate.
BANEFERE (AheiE) AEIMNEER 2 BEIZE
RROARFEMN  UHRMOERESIRBBEMTE &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
BARFTEEH ()

Key audit matter

BEETEE

BT ES

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANETNMEEERETSE

Fair value of investment in convertible bonds

AHEREFIRE S N FE

The Group had an investment in convertible bonds designated
at fair value through profit or loss with a carrying amount of
HK$106 million as at 31 December 2020. The Group involved
external experts to assess the fair value of the investment in
convertible bonds using valuation techniques. This matter was
significant to our audit because the balance of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss was material to the
consolidated financial statements. Further, the assessment
process was complex and involved significant judgements.
EEER T _THF+_A=1+—RAEERATEFAE
@2 R E IR B Z BRE{E /3 106,000000/87C © HE
B HIMNEERRABERMTEITRRESFREZAF
B - WEEHRMNEXBERZ  REAR/KRATE AR
HZEHMEBEEZERUGEEMBERRBESR - I - 7114
RFFERM - By REXHE -

Related disclosures about the assessment of the fair value
of the financial assets at fair value through profit of loss are
included in notes 3, 22 and 41 to the financial statements.
BHEFERATEFAEBERZERMEELNFECIEEREE
BN SR MIEE3 - 2241 o

Our audit procedures included, among others, assessing the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of its external experts
and involving our valuation experts to assist us in evaluating
the methodologies used by the Group's external experts to
determine the fair value of investment in convertible bonds as
at 31 December 2020 and testing the assumptions in particular,
time to expiration, risk free rate, share price, expected volatility,
discount rates and others.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
B EEN R EF

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
B EEN R EF

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF BB SRR REAKIEN
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EFE)
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

M AEE 32
meEBmR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_T-_TF+-_A=1+—BLEE

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET—NF
Notes HKS’000 HKS$000
it FET FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BESEEK
REVENUE WEs 5 37,770 244,685
Cost of sales SHERAR (103,008) (202,937)
Gross (loss)/profit E(8B)/ 7 (65,238) 41,748
Other income and gains H At WA Je i za 5 40,950 32,431
Administrative expenses THFA X (33,979) (48,314)
Other expenses HEiFx (333,837) =
Finance costs BEMA (43,425) (52,924)
Share of loss of an associate it /N o = (6,621) =
LOSS BEFORE TAX BrELATEE 8 (442,150) (27,059)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrERE R,/ (Fx) 11 109,276 (3,556)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FNEE (332,874) (30,615)
Attributable to: AT L
Owners of the Company KARHEA (332,874) (30,615)
Non-controlling interests FEE R - =
(332,874) (30,615)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO KRR EBEREEAES
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BlRER
THE COMPANY 13
Basic and diluted BEARREE
— For loss for the year —NEREEMS HK(2.60) cents  HK(0.24) cents

AL

Al
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meZHBER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

2020 2019
—g-gr  —T AE
Notes HK$’000 HKS$000
Hiat FHET F&T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (332,874) (30,615)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hip 2wl A (Ei8)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REBHAREAIEEN HESE
that may be reclassified to profit or loss in BRERzZHEM2E
subsequent periods: WA (EE) :
Cash flow hedges: RemEE A
Effective portion of changes in fair value FREECHHPTHE
of hedging instruments arising during N EEFH 2
the year BRED 26 (7,699) (5,298)
Reclassification adjustments for AEGZEEBRERZ
loss included in the consolidated BB Y B
statement of profit or loss 26 2,969 10,779
Income tax effect FriSfi s & 29 1,182 (1,962)
(3,548) 3,519
Exchange differences: EH ZRE
Exchange differences on translation of EIEINEFETEA 2
foreign operations fE H =58 114,787 (35,455)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) REBEAE R e EHT D8

that may be reclassified to profit or loss in THEFRZEMEE

subsequent periods WA (E518) /35 111,239 (31,936)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REZBETEEH S

that will not be reclassified to profit orloss in  EEREFx 2 HM 2@

subsequent periods: WA (Eia) :

Equity investment designated at fair value EERAFEFAEMEER

through other comprehensive income: WA Z P& ARIEE -

Changes in fair value N EZE - (10,637)
Restoration to original cost for the investment  H&K Alta AT 2 %A

subsequently becoming an associate ERCENEY 5 %N 10,637 -
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that REBHIET@EHHES

will not be reclassified to profit or loss in BRRzZHEM2E

subsequent periods WA (38 ) %58 10,637 (10,637)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR S RE 2wk A (EE)

THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (BEHKFE) 121,876 (42,573)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR  F AN ZH EIE1E%E (210,998) (73,188)
Attributable to: AT e -

Owners of the Company KATHEA A (210,998) (73,188)

Non-controlling interests IR = = =

(210,998) (73,188)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R E SRR R

As at 31 December 2020
RZZEZ_ZEF+-_R=+—H

2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HKS$000
et FETT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MRiE 14 2,686,692 2,814,235
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 2,045 3,845
Intangible assets ‘R EE 16 224 298
Investment in an associate RELENRIZRE 17 33,386 =
Equity investment designated at fair value FEEEAFEFT AHM
through other comprehensive income 2ERAZBRARIEE 17 = 13,799
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 2 A F(EzF ABZR LR
loss BE 22 106,333 =
Long-term prepayments REAFET IR = 5444
Loan to an associate RIETFHEARZER 39(b) 127,008 =
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 29 40,827 12,351
Total non-current assets EmEE ELE 2,996,515 2,849,972
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Inventories Ny 18 686 957
Trade receivables FEU AR X 19 = 12,798
Loans receivable FEWE R 20 = 35,000
Prepayments, other receivables and FERFRIE - EfbEU
other assets HEREMEE 21 40,623 35374
Loan to an associate RIEFHENRZER 39(b) 93,928 =
Pledged deposits [REEEES 23 42,544 38,801
Cash and cash equivalents HERESZEEY 23 892,871 1,237,219
Total current assets BB ERE 1,070,652 1,360,149
Total assets BEE 4,067,167 4,210,121
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Trade payables FEfTRRER 24 3,084 2,619
Other payables and accruals E At T FRIE %
fEstERA 25 51,894 62,052
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 26 9,859 1,059
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 1,749 1,788
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEE 28 1,625,806 =
Tax payable FERITRIE = 1,182
Total current liabilities mENBEBRE 1,692,392 68,700
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS nE(BE)  BEFE (621,740) 1,291,449
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BMEERRDAS 2,374,775 4,141,421
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE MR ERE

As at 31 December 2020
RZEZTF+-_A=+—H

2020 2019

—EC-BE —T-NF

Notes HK$’000 HKS'000

Bt FET FET

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERTDEE 2,374,775 4,141,421

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEmENBE

Interest-bearing bank borrowings S RBRITEE 28 - 1,480,951

Lease liabilities HEAE 27 406 2,145

Deferred tax liabilities R TEAGE 29 162,528 232,170

Derivative financial instruments PTEERMTA 26 = 3,316

Total non-current liabilities nBaEeE 162,934 1,718,582

Net assets BESE 2,211,841 2,422,839
EQUITY RATEE ANELER

Share capital [N 30 1,277,888 1,277,888

Reserves i 32 933,953 1,144,951

Total equity EmiATa 2,211,841 2,422,839

Approved on behalf of the board of directors: REEFSHE -
Xue Jian Law Wing Chi, Stephen
[ BIKE
Director Director
EZE EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALRER ARG
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at fair
valuethrough
other
comprehensive Retained
Cash flow income*  Exchange profits/
Share hedge BAFEHA  fluctuation (accumulated
Share Share option  reserve* EMAEMA  reservet losses)* Total
apital  premium*  resevet  BEHE sEREEC  ERNE REEA/ equity
ke RiEE BRERE  Whgk  ATERE fifer  (REE)  BREE
HKs 000 HKS 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HKks'ooo HKS 000
T S T T T T T T
At 1 January 2019 N=E-nF-f-A 1277888 1007637 2158 (71525) - (115629) 311494 2496007
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (30619) (30619)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREMREER:
Cash flow hedges, net o tax B REHnENRER) = - - 3519 = - - 3519
Exchange differences on translation BEBINERIEE,
offoreign operations EizE - - - - - (35459) - (35459)
Changes i falrvalue of equity investment. KR RAFEFAZHZERA
designated at fair value through other RAREATEES
comprehensive income, net of tax (EnRHE) - - - - (10637) - - (10637)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERRERELE - - - 3519 (10637) (35455) B30615) (73189
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NETZA=1-8 1,277,888 1027637 2158 (4,006) (10637) (151,080) 280879 2422839
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-TE-F-§ 1,277,888 1,027,637 2,158 (4,006) (10,637) (151,080) 280879 2,422,839
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (332874 (332874)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREHEEEE:
Cash low hedges, net o tax Reiedn(ENERE) - - - (3,548) - - - (3,548)
Exchange differences on translation AERINERAEE,
of foreign operations EizE - - - - - 14787 - e
Restoration toorginal cost for the equity AL BBE AR ATEA
investment at fair value through other A 2ENRARERR
comprehensive income subsequently ERRRA(ENRHE)
becoming an associate, net of tax fnote 17)  (#i17) - - - - 10,637 - - 10,637
Total comprehensive loss for the year EREEpRLE - - - (3,548) 10,637 114787 (332874)  (210,998)
At 31 December 2020 W-E-FF+-A=1-H 1,277,888 1,027,637 2,158 (7,554) - (36,293) (51,995)  (2,211,841)
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of 2 HWERERBREGAUBERIBRAZ

4R A FE15933,953,0008 T (T — N4 :
1,144,951,000/& 7T ) °

HK$933,953,000 (2019: HKS$1,144,951,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —FE-NF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
HtaE FET FEIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  REKELEH 2 HERE
Loss before tax: PRI ATESE - (442,150) (27,059)
Adjustments for: KAER AT -
Finance costs & R A 43,425 52,924
Share of losses of an associates ity /NGl =k =] 6,621 -
Interest income from loan to an associate RETFHBEQRZERZ
FLEA 5 (8,743) =
Change in fair value of investment in AMRESFTRE 2
convertible bonds NEEEZD 5 (8,533) =
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BE RERERE
equipment 14 333,609 -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREETE
equipment 14 35,032 37,704
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 1,814 5511
Amortisation of intangible assets T B 16 95 17
(38,830) 69,197
Decrease in inventories FER D 271 21
Decrease in trade receivables FE LS BR TR 12,798 7.811
Decrease in loans receivable ERE R 35,000 175,000
Increase in prepayments, other receivables — FE{TFRIE ~ H b fE W 7018
and other assets &ﬁﬁﬂé?i*ﬂﬂ (6,351) (7.113)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTBRFRIE A0 (R > 465 (3,335)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables f’@ﬁﬁ ZOEYSY u+§ﬁﬁ
and accruals CR) /10 (10,746) 13,957
Cash generated (used in)/from operations ZE(PTH) P54 (7,393) 255,538
Luxemburg tax paid BN ERERIE - (30)
France profit tax refunded/(paid) RE(BR)EBFTEE 1,097 (2,238)
Hong Kong profit tax paid BERNEENEH (1,222) =
Net cash flows generated (used in)/from LESEEN(FTA) /TS
operating activities RemeFE (7,518) 253,270
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2020 2019
—EB-EF —ZT-NF
Note HKS’000 HKS$000
Htat FET FEIT
Net cash flows generated (used in)/from KESEEN TS (PR
operating activities RENEFHE (7,518) 253,270
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERE TSRS RE
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE  WMEMRE
equipment HE (6,754) (12,029)
Acquisition of an associate g 1N (13,676) =
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BEEATEFABRZZ
through profit or loss TREE (97,800) =
Decrease/(increase) in long-term prepayments  &HEATEM B CRL)
184 5,444 (5,444)
Increase in loan to an associate T;E'Ef ?’ i1 /N] o
EIEnm (198,335) =
Net cash flows used in from investing REFRETAR S R 558
activities (311,121) (17,473)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ REBEEB2HERE
Increase in pledged time deposits 2R E BT FIE (119) (15,790)
Payment of directly attributable IERRITEERERE
transaction costs to interest-bearing B2 Z R AR
bank borrowings - (21,930)
Principal portion of lease payment HENRASED (1,791) (5,423)
Interest paid BEFLE (36,454) (47,293)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REESARSRE
HEE (38,364) (90,436)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND Re kRS EY
CASH EQUIVALENTS CRA) /%% (357,003) 145,361
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHReRREEEBED
of year 1,237,219 1,097,590
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [ER B 8) v & %58 12,655 (5,732)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF &4 RIS ZHEY
YEAR 23 892,871 1,237,219
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2QRARKEEEHR
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted AARTRBRETIMH I 2 EHRE
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the BEREMERR  EOREBHER
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). SHARAR(THERZFT]) EH o AR
The address of the registered office of the Company is Victoria )5 fift 9 =5 2 Hh Ak A& Victoria Place, Sth
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
the principal place of business is 28th Floor, Chinachem Century Bermuda @ o B4 2 4 B Bl A& (T
Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. S LITE 78R E A 42 B 15281 -
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, and RATFEEBE SR EER RETH
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in hotel operation and BARTENESOELREREEET -
money lending.
Information about subsidiaries NG =g
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: AKABIHEBARFEBEMT :
Percentage of
Place of incorporation issued share/
or registration/ registered capital
place of Issued ordinary/ attributable to the
operations registered share Company
Form of SRS capital KARES
Name of subsidiary legal entity B min BRITEER/ BRITRH, Principal activities
WEARER HEEEREA Beny AfER afEAEA  TEER
Direct% Indirect %
EE% %
Crown Value Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HKS1 100 - Investment holding
A7 ik /B 1B RERR
Splendid Holdings S.ar.. Corporation Luxembourg/Luxembourg EUR20,000 = 100 Investment holding
A ERE/ERE 200008X REER
MCE OpCo HoldCo Corporation France/France EUR6,973,155 = 100 Investment holding
AL B/ 5 697315580 REER
MCE OpCo Corporation France/France EUR8,835,915 - 100 Hotel operation
AL =B/ EE 8,835,915BX & B
Splendid PropCo Corporation France/France EUR44,000,010 - 100 Owner of a hotel
property
AL =B/ EE 44,000,010BX % EENERBA
Global Strategy International ~ Corporation British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 - Investment holding
Limited © Hong Kong
BRRBERARARO 7] EBARREE/ B 100X 7T REER
Kai Yuan Capital Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Money lending
FRREBRAR NG B/ BB 10,0007 REEH
Star Wonder Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HKST = 100 Investment holding
ERBRAA 7] BE/BA 1B REER
Ever Info Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
A7 RBERREE/ B 100% 7 REER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

1. 2RARKEEERE)

Bt ()
AREMBRARZEENT ¢ ()

Percentage of
Place of incorporation issued share/
or registration/ registered capital
place of Issued ordinary/ attributable to the
operations registered share Company
Form of BRI AT capital KARES
Name of subsidiary legal entity B miny/ ERTEER/ BETRG/ Principal activities
WEAREM HEEEREA ok dfER aEAEAL  TEER
Direct% Indirect %
E#% %
Universal Yield Investments Corporation British Virgin Islands/ USST 100 - Investment holding
Limited ¢ Hong Kong
EFRERRRA O NG EBERREE/BE 1% REER
Deluxe (China) Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HKS1 = 100 Investment holding
wx(PE)BRAT NG B/ BE 18T REER
Shanghai Top Star Advanced  Wholly-owned foreign The PRC/Mainland China US$35,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Materials Co,, Limited. enterprise
LEFERRMME NEBELR VPN 35,000,000%7C REBR
BRRF
Ever Profit Management Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 - Service provision
Limited
KHEBERAH A BE/BR 1,000,000 7 Rt R
Charter Best Investments Corporation British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited © Hong Kong
R RBERREE/ B [EZ REER
Oriental Institute of Science  Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HKS$100 - 100 Research and
Limited development
N BE/ BB 10047 e
Full Kingdom Limited © Corporation British Virgin Islands/Hong USST 100 - Investment holding
Kong
NG EBERREE/ B 1% REER
New York Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HKS1 = 100 Investment holding
NG B/ BE 1B REER
0 No audited financial statements have been prepared for (i) HEERBTEGREEE_T-_TF

these entities for the year ended 31 December 2020, as these
entities were not subject to any statutory audit requirement
under relevant rules and regulations in their jurisdictions of
incorporation.

(i) No audited financial statement has been prepared for the entity
for the year ended 31 December 2020, as the entity only operated
for 3 months during the year.
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2.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for derivative financial instruments and an equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

As disclosed in the Group’s various public announcements
relating to the COVID-19 development updates and the recent
announcement as dated 12 March 2021, in light of the prevailing
COVID-19 precautionary measures and restrictions on travels that
affecting the overall tourism industry, the Group undertakes to
comply with the applicable public health regulations issued by
the local authorities, and the Group'’s Paris Marriott Hotel (“"Hotel”)
business operations has been disrupted under temporarily closure
situation, and the management has decided to further delay the
Hotel's re-opening and the earliest date to consider re-opening
the Hotel will be the end of May 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group'’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by HK$621,740,000. During the year, there are
certain financial covenants in respect of the Group’s 5-year bank
borrowings of EUR175,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,625,806,000)
with original maturity date on 14 October 2024 not fulfilled, as
further detailed in note 28. The non-compliance of covenants
may result in the relevant banks to demand for the repayment
of borrowings before its maturity dates, and hence the bank
borrowings has been presented as current liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020. The
Directors consider that the Group has taken various measures
and will have adequate funds available to enable it to operate
as a going concern, taken into account the past operating
performance of the Group and the following:

Management maintains continuous communication
negotiating with the respective lenders to seek for a
waiver, revision of the terms, or remedial actions. As
of the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, the lenders did not request the Group to
repay the borrowings, and based on the Group's on-
going negotiation effort and discussions with the lenders,
the Directors are of the opinion that the lenders will not
initiate any action over the non-compliance of covenants;

2.1

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

AR
HEFBRRCIEBBBESAMAE
B BARMBEREEN(TEERG
BEEA ] BEMERRYBRESE
Al - RS EAN(EREFEA])
ki)  BREBRMZERAUR
BERAGOIZHBEREMRE - Bt
BHREACRBEELRAERE - H
TEEMTAREERAFEFAR
il 2 E WA Z A RERIN - MER
NFEFE - WFEMBHRRIIUEB T
2% BRAERETEN  MBEEEH
WBERZLOTT -

MRS EEHEERBCOVID- 19 R BN
MAEREBBEAE-_ZTE-_—F=A+
“HREHAEMEE ERE A
COVID-19F &3 48 6 M Bk 17 PR 1) #5 52 28
BEMRETE  ANEBEAKETHE
EREMRERAAREELR K&
HJParis Marriott Hotel ([JB & | ) 31538
CAEREEAmMZ T BEEE R
FTE—FEEBEEFHE  IEE
BEEFRENREAREE-_T =
—FEHARK

HE-_ZT-_ZTF+=-A=+—8 -
AEBzRBHEAEBAREE
621,740,000 70 ° 20BT s 28 FTaf it -
FR - ANEE R R F HE 175,000,000 8K
72 (M8 1,625,806,000/ 7T ) HIER1T
HEIBETSRMREL - VIRIEBAA
ZE-AFF+ATHBAEKRILE -
BREYAESEBHEBARITERE
FIEIA 2 AIEEE R - At - RITE
MER-_ZE-_ZTF+_A=+—HH
BEUBBRERPARBRBER - &
ERAE AEBEERESERE &
AR AERNBAECEEERUTE
Z BERHANEASFEHENFERL

=

EEEERERARTHER
BAZKE R  ERTIHRFREK
A EE - BESREMBR
REHLEZR  ERAKRER
AEEEERNK  BERAE
B IEAEETRERANG NHK
HURH®  EFRAR - B
AR EHEERZHITRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The Group obtained the financial support commitment
from a shareholder, through a controlled entity owned
by the shareholder Mr. Du, who indirectly holds
approximately 5.54% of the issued share capital of the
Company, and committed to provide financial support to
enable the Group to meet it liabilities when they fall due in
the foreseeable future (at least 12 months from the date of
the consolidated financial information); and

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents of HK$892,871,000, which is expected to be
sufficient to maintain the operating cash outflows of the
Group in the next twelve months ending 31 December
2021. Moreover, the Directors are closely monitoring the
progress from the introduction of vaccines and other
preventive measures targeted to contain the outbreaks.
If the outcome is positive, the Directors expects that the
tourism industry would gradually recover.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast
covering a period of twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account
the above-mentioned action plans and measures, the Group
is expected to have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Directors believe
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 on a going
concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, there is significant uncertainty exist
as to whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and measures
as described above which have incorporated assumptions
about future events and conditions that are subject to inherent
uncertainties. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would depend upon the successful negotiation
with the banks to obtain waiver or to revise the existing terms
and conditions of the bank borrowings for the continuous
compliance thereof as and when needed such that the existing
bank borrowings will continue to be available to the Group and be
repaid in accordance with the agreed repayment schedules.
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2.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-mentioned
plans and measures and operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying values of the
Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.1

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

The application of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Groups’ consolidated financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts®
Insurance Contracts*®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current>*

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 417

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

N No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

° As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

g As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
While the adoption of some of the new and revised HKFRSs may
result in changes in accounting policies, none of these HKFRSs is
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments
in the associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of the associate is included
as part of the Group's investment in an associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and an
equity investment at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and non-current assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation),
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(if) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group, and the sponsoring
employers of the post-employment benefit plan;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment, to its residual
value over the estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:
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Useful life
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(years)
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Depreciation rate

wER

Hotel properties B JE Y2
- Freehold land — K AEREL M
— Building in Paris —URERZETF
Buildings BF
Leasehold improvements HEMERE
Motor vehicles it
Office equipment WAERE

Not depreciated Not depreciated

TTFiE TTHE
10-94 1.06%-10%
18-27 3.33-5.28%

2-5 20-50%
5 18-20%
5-6 15-20%
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment or investment properties when completed and ready
for use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised basis over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTTERBE)
POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (continued) BREE(E)
The useful lives of intangible assets are shown as follows: EILEEZ AIMERFHREHIMAT -
Useful life
A fEAFEH
(vears)
(%)
Software LISt 3-5
Leases HE
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or REB @RS BB (h%E 4=
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract TEREXRSHEE - iahFEpE
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a SO SREEE —BERAN B
period of time in exchange for consideration. SIERBEARE  ZAYEBHEES
BEHE -
Group as a lessee NEBEEAAREA
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement ANEBYUFFAHEHEAE ARt
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of % HEHAERERBESERE
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make B e REBeRALHASNTZ Y
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to HEaERERESE(AMEREEE
use the underlying assets. EZRERN) -
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) (&L E
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement FREEENIESEHE B B
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset (BN EEHHERABHE)
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured FE o (F S ERK AR =
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any R 2T ERTMFEIEERE
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement HE O UWHHESEaGZERE
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes A2 AR - FHELSE
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct THRABIECHREEAGES
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the W OECEAEERAEA L
commencement date less any lease incentives received. ERBEGEEAIEER 2
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis MENZURETEREWE A
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated EHEE - FREESERESE
useful lives of the assets as follows: RIBEASAEBEE 2 ([GEtalfE
RFERAREERE)FTER
B FBwT
Lease terms
A
(Years)
()
Buildings BT 2-3
Motor vehicle HE 2-3
Office equipment BN 3-4
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for termination of
a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to all its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option) and leases of items that are considered to be of
low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as other income and
gains in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group'’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of
part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains
are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an

Stage 1 -

amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and

Stage2 -

for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs
Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2.4

ZoEE+-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables, derivative financial instruments, lease liabilities and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

1 00 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2020

2.4

FESHBRBEH)

TRAE

VIR R E
TRABRNIERBEDBREAF
Bt ABHEZEBEBE EXRE
B EBNRBAIDBEREEEREN
HHITAZITETAEGRREER)

AR BERNLEREUAA
R W(ERREE REMK
BRMBERBERHEA

FE
1 I

AEECHABEEEREMER - K
ENMFIE - TASRTE  HERE
KMEtBRITRE -

#ikitE
SHAELEZHERRRESH
BRI -

BHEKA T ECeHAEREAR
(EE)

R THR®R  HEERREERE

ABBR A Z AL B AT E - B0
RRBRZEEY AEANRRI - EULE

AT - BRI - BERABR
ﬂi(ﬁu/uﬂ‘rﬁﬁ/\&,\p %‘J%—‘/i&&ﬂ%/z@
*EEPE?E i‘%ﬁﬁﬂ/b\ ©

AAEEHEAAR S RRBAEEZ
TR IEE - Nt RIERERF
RO ZEBERIMAR - BERF X
HETABRBRZBEKAF -



2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest
rate swaps, to hedge its interest rate risk. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when
the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment; or

cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction, or a foreign
currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment; or

hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged
and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship
meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the
analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the
hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for
hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness
requirements:

There is “an economic relationship” between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument.

The effect of credit risk does not “dominate the value
changes” that result from that economic relationship.

The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same
as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item
that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge
that quantity of hedged item.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Hedges which meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge
accounting are accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The
cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative
gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the cumulative
change in fair value of the hedged item.

The amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are
accounted for, depending on the nature of the underlying hedged
transaction. If the hedged transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial item, the amount accumulated in
equity is removed from the separate component of equity and
included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the hedged
asset or liability. This is not a reclassification adjustment and will
not be recognised in other comprehensive income for the period.
This also applies where the hedged forecast transaction of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability subsequently becomes a
firm commitment to which fair value hedge accounting is applied.

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period or periods
during which the hedged cash flows affect the statement of profit
or loss.

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount
that has been accumulated in other comprehensive income
must remain in accumulated other comprehensive income
if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur.
Otherwise, the amount will be immediately reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. After
the discontinuation, once the hedged cash flow occurs, any
amount remaining in accumulated other comprehensive income
is accounted for depending on the nature of the underlying
transaction as described above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2.4

ZoEE+-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting)
for a period beyond 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the
host contract are classified consistently with the cash
flows of the host contract.

Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can
be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHEREBE®H)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax Fris®i

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax FISHeEBEERIE - RNiEx
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised KU HERZIBER 2HBFRE
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or o 2RBRRAMNLSER - AR
directly in equity. EmamR AR EERERER °
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount AR EERBENRERZ2HE
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, MEERERMRERBEMZHE (K
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or FOE)  ZEEREIAEBESHERRE
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking BB RIED - LATEEAR] B i f5#%
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the RO sk RIS AN 22 5EtE

countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all EERIBEERAGE R 23R
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between MEEREERABZHEEEEE
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts BHHASRCEEEREERE
for financial reporting purposes. TEL B -
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary FTEREEN =M RER
differences, except: HEE WA TERERIN :
when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial c EEERIE A ERY L RS
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a B IERAHLSH 2 EEK
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the BEmMEYS  BREFTRR S
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting BehafskERRERS®E
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and FE R
in respect of taxable temporary differences associated . HERKMB AR LREBZE NG Z
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when WEEB ZERHEREE=5Mm
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences = BERERE LR
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary FiEH o BEREZENA R
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. KA GEN & BT -
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue recognition for the hotel operation of the Group is
subject to HKFRS 15, including rendering of accommodation
services, catering services, travel agency services and laundry
services, each deemed as a separate performance obligation.
Such performance obligation is satisfied over time as the service
is rendered and revenue is recognised accordingly. Payment is
generally due within 30 days upon completion of the service.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—

2.4

ZoEE+-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Pension scheme (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

1 1 2 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2020

2.4

FESHBRBEH)

Hitvf@SEF ()

BUkEEE)(B)

REERPEAELEZMBARZ
EBEAZMNBE T RFEENFRR
BAREEE - ZEMBRAAREH
ERARZET A D RFRRERE G
EHR - BREFNREFT REKRE
AEIZRAB TN ERERH °

BB KA

UHE - BiENEERAEE(BIMBERL
F—BERBEAEEEBTEARIE
ECEBE)CEEREBERASE R
BR - EAREEEREAZ —HBD °
R EEEAR EAEEETEARS
HER  BIFLLEZSEBRAET
ﬁ$°TE%LFEE%¢wT§F
Z%imﬁﬁﬁ ®E BRI E
WA REBTEEARZEEKAF
B o mﬁﬁmﬁkﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂ
ERY - EERABEMNEREER
BABRSHELE Z B o

’RE

AEBERBERERRAE LELH#
ERERREE - BRRHBRSHR
PSR EPHRE -

HRARBIABERRERNERARET
EXERTHRE ZER - @ H

SARAFERRERTIR - Fitt -
,H\HHX,%\HqEQLm/JE?‘&Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ
RRAE-



2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences arising on settlement of translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the
exceptions of monetary items that are designated as part of the
hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount
is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and
credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

2.4

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an
associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into the presentation
currency at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the Mainland China and overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year of the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the commercial property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of these properties which are leased out and accounts
for the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise
a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is
an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3.

ZoEE+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. Useful lives are
determined based on management’s past experience with similar
assets and estimated changes in technologies. If the estimated
useful lives changed significantly, adjustment of depreciation will
be provided in the future year. The carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$2,686,692,000 (2019: approximately HK$2,814,235,000). More
details are given in note 14.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The Group
involved external experts to perform an impairment assessment
on the French hotel cash-generating unit (“French Hotel CGU")
with a carrying amount of HK$2,647,551,000 as at 31 December
2020 (2019: HKS2,775,680,000) based on income approach to
estimate its fair value less costs of disposal. The assessment is
based on key assumptions, such as average daily rate per room,
occupancy rate, discount rate, long-term growth rate and terminal
capitalisation rate. The directors of the Company concluded that,
based on the assessment result, impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment of HK$333,609,000 has been recognised for
the year. Further details are contained in notes 14 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
estimation is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2020 was HK$42,878,000
(2019: HK$16,520,000. The amount of unrecognised tax losses at
1 December 2020 was HK$239,925,000 (2019: HK$221,037,000).
Further details are contained in note 29 to the financial
statements.

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The fair values of the Group's investment in convertible bonds
are calculated using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
are certified by an independent qualified valuer before being
implemented for valuation and are calibrated to ensure that
outputs reflect market conditions. Valuation models established
by the valuer make the maximum use of market inputs and rely as
little as possible on the Group's specific data. The model involves
estimates on time to expiration, risk free rate, share price, share
price volatility, discount rates and others. As at 31 December 2020,
the carrying amount of the Group's investment in convertible
bonds is HK$106,333,000 (2019: Nil).

Further details are contained in note 41 to the financial
statements.

Fair value of an unlisted equity investment

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 41 to
the financial statements. The valuation requires the Group to
determine the comparable public companies (peers) and select
the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes estimates about
the discount for illiquidity. Further details are included in note 17
to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFEER
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business AREBREMIREHZERMRES
units base on their products and services and has two reportable BEMNOBIINANERE - XEBET
operating segments (2019: two) as follows: S ME R RELEDE(ZE—NF :
ME)
(a) the hotel operation segment engaged in operation of (a) TEIRB &R E R 2 BEK
hotel businesses in France; and EoEh s &
(b) the money lending segment engaged in providing (b) EEBIEMIRBER 2 EE
mortgage loans in Hong Kong. TEDED ©
Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating EEEBBUERESESILIESE - LA
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about BEEEBERI»ERKRBETGHZ
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment R o DEFRIRTIRIE ] L 5 L
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/ M/ BE(EAREFECEERKY
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax from KRAEBRBREDERN EECZTE)F
continuing operations. The adjusted profit/loss before tax from LAREHE - REBELCEER 2 KAR
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group’s B REF B st 2 EARE B K
profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest ERECLEER BB RN ZET2
income, other interest income from financial assets at fair value — B EMBUWA - HEAFEFARE
through profit or loss, interest income from loan to an associate, BmZeMEEZHMRBUA -« 23
fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or FHME N ZERZABWA « EBA
loss, share of loss of an associate and corporate expenses are TEFABZZEREEZ ATEER
excluded from such measurement. m BEBERARIZEBEEBRREARRAY
WRETEER °
An analysis for the Group's revenue is as follows: AREB 2 WHEDHTOT ¢
Hotel Money
Year ended 31 December 2020 operation lending Total
BE-_Z_ZHF+_A=+—HLFE R R mMEEK et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Segment revenue (note 5) o EB Uk ER (KiEEs)
Sales to external customers AN B EE 36,880 890 37,770
Segment results DEBHEE (445,117) (97) (445,214)
Reconciliation: #ER -
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 10,586
Interest income from loantoan IR FEIL AT ZE R
associate ZFBUA 8,743
Fair value gains on financial BAFEGFAEREZ
assets at fair value through ERMEEZAYE
profit or loss e 8,533
Share of loss of an associate JE(EBE 2N F) 2 B (6,621)
Corporate and other unallocated A &) R E M AR D BRI X
expenses (18,177)
Loss before tax BritATE 1B (442,150)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—

ZoRE+—A=+—HIFE

4 EESBER )

Hotel Money
Year ended 31 December 2019 operation lending Total
E_E-NFTA=T—HItFE B JE 45 R eSS st
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS$000
FET FET FET
Segment revenue (note 5) 7 e 7 (KaEs)
Sales to external customers RN RFHE 240,901 3,784 244,685
Segment results DERELE (14,743) 2,644 (12,099)
Reconciliation: HHER
Bank interest income HRITH EWA 15,766
Corporate and other NElREM AR R
unallocated expenses (30,726)
Loss before tax FRELRIES 1R (27,059)
Geographical information HhEER
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) FKEI S 7 as
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHETT FET
France EE 36,880 240,901
Hong Kong BB 890 3,784
37,770 244,685

The revenue information above is based on the locations

of the customers.

Bz W BB RIBE A

Bl
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESPERE)

Geographical information (continued) EER(E)
(b) Non-current assets (b) FE B E
2020 2019
—EEH —ZT-NF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHET FET
France EE 2,649,827 2,779,834
Mainland China B K e 72,489 38,497
Hong Kong B8 31 47
2,722,347 2,818,378
The non-current asset information above is based on the LMz IERBEEER TIIRE
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments, BEFEHE S  WAEES
long-term prepayments and deferred tax assets. BETE REEMRELRELE
MIBEE o
Information about major customers FEEFZEHR
No revenue from transaction with a single customer amounted to REBEE_Z_ZFR_FT-NFT+=
10% or more of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 A=+—HI§E UEEE-—KP
December 2020 and 2019. ETR Gz Wamh A EE K= B5E

10%3k A | o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R3S Sk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& - Htt AR W=
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains are as follows: e~ B A RRKZ AT
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
Revenue from contracts with customers T F &4 36,880 240,901
Revenue from other sources R B H AR 2z W
Interest income F B2 WA 890 3,784
37,770 244,685
Other income Hug A
Gross rental income from a property MELEHEZ
operating lease: MW AL :
Fixed lease payments B EHEFRIE 1,688 2,427
Interest income from loan to RIEFHE AR ZERZ
an associate F B U A 8,743 =
Government grants IR AT B 1,756 =
Bank interest income RITH BHA 10,586 15,766
22,773 18,193
Gains Wz
Gain on financial assets at fair value through 2R F{EFF ABZZ
profit or loss (note 22) SRLE EWE (A iE22) 8,533 =
Business interruption compensation X EREE 9,227 14,195
Foreign exchange gains b 5 e - 40
Others Hip 417 3
18,177 14,238
40,950 32,431
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
The disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with
customers is as follows:

5. W - HtelA R WS (@)
AEEZEFENWSEINIAT ¢

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Type of services BR G| A
Rendering of accommodation services TR ETE AR 7S 27,925 192,013
Rendering of catering services RHERIRT 6,934 45,320
Rendering of travel agency services IRAIRTT AL AR 7S 1,815 2,354
Rendering of laundry services RESE KRS 206 1,214
Total revenue from contracts with customers  Z & #kzs48 36,880 240,901
Geographical market i@ %
France and total revenue from contracts FBREFALWN LR
with customers 36,880 240,901
Timing of revenue recognition U i FE SR RS
Services transferred over time and total REE—EBREEAEERE
revenue from contracts with customers FA#Nz4e5E 36,880 240,901

Total revenue from contracts with customers can be directly
reconciled to the segment revenue of hotel operation disclosed in
note 4.

6. OTHER EXPENSES

BEPANWKEA

7] BT T4 PTIR ER

&l
R E D R E R

6. HRAX

2020 2019
—E-FF —F-NF
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
Hfat FHETT FHEIT

Impairment of property, plant ~ #)% « W= LR ERE
and equipment 14 333,609 -
Foreign exchange losses b 5 B 1R 228 -
333,837 -
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BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MEHRK

2020 2019

—B-EF —E-NEF

Note HK$’000 HKS$000

23 FET FEIT

Interest on bank borrowings IRITEER S 40,304 41,375
Fair value losses, net: N EFEEFE

Cash flow hedges (transfer from other & mE ¥ (EE B

comprehensive income) HE2mEmA) 2,969 10,779

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 27 152 770

43,425 52,924

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after (crediting)/charging:

8. MKRBATEE
AEBBRBAEREGIA) Nk

LATIEE -
2020 2019
—EB-EH —T-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Hfat FET FEIT
Cost of hotel operation RS R AR 67,835 165,233
Depreciation of property, plant and Mm% - BEREETE
equipment 14 35,032 37,704
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 15 1,814 5511
Amortisation of intangible assets B AR 16 95 117
Impairment of property, plant and mE - BERFERE
equipment 14 333,609 =
Lease payments not included in VESAHEEEFECHE
the measurement of lease liabilities (NE-S 37(b) 94 959
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE B 2 2,231 2,096
Wages, salaries and other benefits I% FekEMEF(BE
(including directors’ and chief E=ZFMREZITHAR
executive's remuneration (note 9)) (1 529)) 8,483 10,817
Foreign exchange difference, net B 5 =58 56 228 (40)
Fair value losses net: NEEFES
Cash flow hedges (transfer from other REeREH H
comprehensive income) (EEaHEMbEEBRA) 7 2,969 10,779
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABRZEREE
profit or loss (8,533) -
Interest income from loan to an associate 424 FEEE A &) 2 FIE WA (8,743) =
Bank interest income RITFIEWA (10,586) (15,766)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9.

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

EEREETHRAEHMH

RELDRRFECRAMED
5£383(1)(@) ~ (b) ~ (RO R (#
BESNaERRM) EZ2MRELE
ERFETHRABFAFHMAT

2020 2019

—EEF —ZT-NEF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FETT FHEIT

Fees e 1,000 2,295
Other emoluments: H b REN

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e R REYA S 4,290 4,290

Performance related bonuses R RIR R 2 TEAT 760 1,520

Pension scheme contributions RIS ET B 36 36

5,086 5,846

6,086 8,141

No Share options were granted for the years ended 31 December

2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEy RS E

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_TF+-A=+—HIEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERIETHAEEHM#)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Executive directors, non-executive directors and the chief HITEE BUIHTESERTE
executive: TEAE .
Salaries,
allowance and
benefits Pension
in kind Performance scheme
#< - related bonuses contributions Total
2020 Fees EER  ERBAHNZ E{KE remuneration
—E-EF we BYFE A HE [E3A B0 Pkl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE FET FET FET FHET
Executive directors:
WITESE:
Mr. Xue Jian*
BfR o A 200 2,600 500 18 3,318
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
BokERE 200 1,690 260 18 2,168
400 4,290 760 36 5,486
Independent non-executive directors:
BERITES
Mr. Tam Sun Wing
BIRESE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Ng Ge Bun
REWEE 200 - - - 200
Mr. He Yi
BEXkAE 200 - - = 200
600 - - - 600
1,000 4,290 760 36 6,086
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-_TFE+-A=1+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERFIETBRAEFME)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Executive directors, non-executive directors and the chief HITEE BIUIHTESERTE
executive (continued): THRAE(E)
Salaries,

allowance and

benefits Pension
in kind Performance scheme
#& +  related bonuses  contributions Total
2019 Fees BA K BRRBEMEZ RIKE  remuneration
—E-NF e BN & TE4T FHEIER rbilaze
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors:
HITES:
Dr. Li Zhigiang (service term expired on
29 March 2019)
FEmEL
(FHR=ZF—NF=H
Z1AHEw) 1,295 = = = 1,295
Mr. Xue Jain*
sy 200 2,600 1,000 18 33818
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
BokERE 200 1,690 520 18 2,428
1,695 4290 1,520 36 7,541
Independent non-executive directors:
BIERITES
Mr. Tam Sun Wing
B EE 200 = = - 200
Mr. Ng Ge Bun
REWEE 200 - - - 200
Mr. He Yi
BEXkEAE 200 - - - 200
600 - - - 600
2,295 4290 1,520 36 8,141
e Mr. Xue is the chief executive officer of the Company. * B ERANTITHES -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FABRBEMNEHRESHEXRENR
agreed to waive any emoluments during the Year. E RN 2 ZHE
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 10. EEBREHFMAL
The five highest paid individuals during the year included two FANRLELESFMATORE _—_ZES
directors (2019: three directors), details of whose emoluments are —ENF:ZREE) KEZH
set out in note 9 above. Details of the emoluments for the year BEEBEH RN E XXMz - FARARBRT =%
of the remaining three (2019: two) highest paid individuals who —E-NF ZR)RIIEARRRES
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as MIEFETHRAEZSESHFMALZ
follows: HBNEEBAT
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FETT FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZMEREYN = 2,476 1,994
Performance related bonuses B ITEME 7 TEAT 234 404
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIER 53 36
2,763 2,434
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid FMNFATEHE 2B EES NI EE
individuals whose emoluments fell within the following bands is ZITRABERSFMAT ZABNT :
as follows:

Number of employees

EEAH

2020 2019

—ECEH —T-NF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000/ 7T 2 1

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
No share options were granted for the years ended 31 December 2020 and REE-_E_TEFR_ZE—NF+=
2019. A=+—RIEFE @ UEKBEME

A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—

11.

ZoEE+-_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the Year, except for one subsidiary of the Group
which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax
regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%).
Taxed on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The provision for PRC current income tax was based on the
statutory rate of 25% (2019: 25%) of the assessable profits of
the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China as determined in
accordance with the relevant income tax rules and regulations of
the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, which came into effect on 1
January 2008.

The provision of French current income tax was based on the rate
of 28% (2019: 28%) for the estimated assessable profits arising
during the year. The tax rates in France are as follows:

For year 2020 28%
For year 2021 26.5%
For year 2022 and afterwards 25%

The provision of Luxembourg'’s current income tax was based
on the rate of 29.22% (2019: 29.22%) of the estimated assessable
profits arising during the Year.
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g
EANEHBEFANEEBEEZM
ETERTRE R IE R E16506(ZF— N,
F 1 16.5%) B E - ARQRE T —REM
BRA(HAZZT—N/—ZT_TFH
FEEBZAEHRMEHTZEER
EEE) BRI o tE KB A B B 2,000,000
TT(ZZ—AF : 2,000,000 7T ) 2 &
BB FNIR8.25%( — T — S5 ¢ 8.25%)
FREFEIE - s TR a A BliE
16.5%( ZZ— NG : 16.5%) B R
B EBERZERFAANIRAEE
EEFIERR CRITHEFAERIA -

FEAHASHEEIRASERF

B K B 2 M8 N B HE AR B MR
%ﬁ"zs%(_ﬁ_hi 1 25%)EHE B
BREDRBR_ZZENF—-—H—AH

ERZH !m%ﬁﬁ BEOREEMER
RAIRRBIMEE -

EBBVERFT SRR B FANELE 2 A5
JFE SR T i M 228% ( —ZF — L4 © 28%)
TR - FEF RN -

—ECTFE 28%
B —FF 26.5%
—E-_FERNE 25%

EREBNEAEHBEFRNEE ZMAE
ST E AT R AR R E29220(=ZF— N1
£ 1 29000 ) RS o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

INCOME TAX (continued) 1. FEH@E)
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended BHE-_ZE_TFER_ZE—NFT+=A
31 December 2020 and 2019 were as follows: =+t BHLFEMEHRASZEES
DT
2020 2019
—ECEE —E-NF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHET FET
Current income tax — Hong Kong BNERFTIS R — &8
Charge for the year FRL W = 88
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 40 -
Current income tax — France Under-provision BIEAFF{S 8 — % B
in prior years BEFERETRE 5 =
Current income tax — Luxembourg BNERFT ISR — E R & - 30
Deferred (note 29) RIE (H7E29) (109,321) 3,438
Income tax expenses for the year FREHRFAX (109,276) 3,556
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

11.  INCOME TAX (continued) 1. FREHR@E)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before WEANANANRRAEWE AR FTER
tax from continuing operations at the statutory rates for the FREREEZETHESERGHERSE
jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries are EBRCBRBRAEE RS 2R E
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a BMEERAE BRGEHS 2HE - UK
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to HERABR(EEAERR)EEERHRER 2
the effective tax rates are as follows: HWERIN R -
2020 Mainland China Hong Kong France Luxembourg Others ! Total
53 hE AR g4 iEH E3E Hfyo &3t
HK$000 %  HKS'000 %  HKS'000 %  HKS'000 %  HKS'000 %  HKS'000 %
7 F&n F&n FAn 77 T

(Loss)/profitbeforetax BB (BIE) /

B (352) 18,131 (461,266) 1,381 () (M2,150)
Taxat the statutory income R FTEH %

tax rate SEZRE (88) 25.0 2,992 165 (129,154) 28,0 404 29.2 - - (125,846) 285
Hfectof different taxrate  TRAREF2 - - - - 13,267 (29) - - - - 13267 (3.0)
Frpenses not deductble R AIERR

fortax 1,655  (4702) - - 6,566 (1.4) - - - - 8,221 (1.9)
Income not subject totax ~ EZHHRA - - (1083 (390) - - (4oa) (92 - - (1460) 17
Talosses utlised fom BB EALRHE

previous periods Bl (1,567)  445.2 - - - - - - - - (1,567) 04
Taxlosses not recognised ~ KEHERHE - -4 25 - - - - - - 40 (09)
Prioryear taxadjustment  FERIEE - - 40 02 5 - - - - = 45 00

Taxcharge at the Group's  RAEBEMRH
g

effective rate HE BB

St B
1
1

40 0.2 (109,316) n7 - = -

(109,276) 248

e
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BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

11.  INCOME TAX (continued) 1. %)
2019 Mainland China Hong Kong France Luxembourg Others Total
“EnE hEAR Bk i ERE R0 a3t
HKS 000 % HKSO00 % HKS000 % HKSO00 % HKSO00 % HKSO00 %
TEr TEL TEL TEL TEr TET

(E8) /& (4814 7274 (30482 1003 (@) (27059)

Tavat the statutory income R AT FTEH &

faxrate RV (1,204) 250 1,200 165 (8539 280 293 292 - - (8,246) 305
Lower tax rateenacted by 7 & B2
local authority BERE - - (%) (12 - - - - - - (68) 03
Proenses not deductble R IRER
for tax - - - - 11973 (393) - - - - 1973 (442)
Income not subject totax ~ EZHFMA - - 50 (690) - - %9 92 - - 539 196
Taxlosses not recognised KB HEHE 1204 (50 399 550 - - - - - - 5Mm (192
Minimum corporate income  SHEAEFTER
tax - - - - - - 30 30 - - 30 (01)
Taxchargeat the Group's  RASEERHR
effecive rate tEZBHAR - - 8 13 38 (1) Kl 30 - -3 (1))
(i) Others represent the results of certain subsidiaries which are tax- (i) HEipigE THEB AR (RERERK
exempted companies incorporated in Bermuda and the British BHR RS MK 2 BB EH
Virgin Islands. BAR))ZHE °
12. DIVIDENDS 12. BE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in BV FRBRNAFETMBRE (=
respect of the year (2019: Nil). TNF &)
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13.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic losses per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of 12,778,880,000
(2019: 12,778,880,000) shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted losses per share amount is based
on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic losses per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic losses per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 in respect of a dilution as the exercise prices of the
Company’s outstanding share options were higher than the
average market prices for the Company’s shares during the years.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

13.

AAREREEREARLER
B8

EREABEEBSBDNREBEAQALE
ERFEBEABRFTFRABEARFAR
B 1T R% 10 N 39 A% £5012,778,880,000
(=T —h & : 12,778,880,0000% ) 5t

s
H o
A

BRESERESRIREALRER
BamE AREFARBRNE - 518
F P {62 PR 22 & 3 A 4 19 B B Et
HEREAEREMER 2 FADH
TEBRHE  UERBRMAERAEE
BEYEEBARRA/ITENER
A58 B A T S 31T 2 R AR N T
BIREER -

WERBE_T_TFR_T—NF
T_A=+-BLFEE2HZIEK
EXABReRELEERE  RER
REBFREARRRHRITERBRE 2
TEEHRRARBRD 2 FATH
{E1& -

BRERERRTIBURE

2020 2019
—B-BF —TNF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET FET
Loss [5F ]
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders — ZANA B E@ERREA A
of the Company FE1EE B (332,874) (30,615)
2020 2019
—EC-BF —E-hF
Shares ('000) A (FAR)
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EEREEEE ZFNR
shares in issue during the year used BEITL BRI
in the diluted loss per share calculation e 12,778,880 12,778,880

1 32 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2020



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

14. Y% BERRE

Hotel Leasehold Motor Office
properties Buildings  improvements vehicles equipment Total
BENE B HENELEE hE N @t
HKs'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKS 000
TAT AT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Cost AA

As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1-H 3027977 56,757 1835 4129 1,198 3091,8%
Additions ®E 12015 - - - 14 12029
Disposals rt= (798) = = = = (7943)
Exchange differences on translation REELVEHER (78,021) (1,219 9) (120) o (79373)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-R=1-R 2,954,028 55,538 1,826 4,009 1,208 3,016,609
Additions HE 6,754 - - - - 6,754
Exchange differences on translation ~ HEE4 7 EHEE 275,375 3724 4 366 13 279,482
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-Z%+-F=1-H 3,236,157 59,262 1,830 4,375 1,221 3,302,345

Accumulated depreciation 2iE
As at 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+ZR=1-H (147697) (16067) (1829 (3,585) (1.145) (170323)
Charge for the year EQfRE (35801) (1,889) 0) - (19 (37.704)
Disposals e 7943 - - - - 7983
Exchange differences on translation BEELEEE 3012 379 1 108 4 4415
As at 31 December 2019 RIE-NET-A=1-8 (171,643) (17,573) (1,820) (3,477) (1,156) (195,669)
Charge for the year ENfRE (33,152) (1,866) - - (14) (35,032)
Exchange differences on translation BEEEVEREER (18,419) (1,289) (10) (329) (13) (20,060)
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-A=1-H (223,214) (20,728) (1,830) (3,806) (1,183) (250,761)

Impairment loss HEFR
As at 31 December 2018 R-F-NFtZA=1-A (6,882) - - - - (6:88)
Exchange differences on translation BEEL B EE 177 - - _ - 177
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NET-A=1-H (6,705) - - - - (6,705)
Charge for the year FRTE (333,609) - - - - (333,609)
Bichange differences on translation ~~ HEE4 7 EHEE (25,078) - - - - (25,078)
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-EF+-A=1-H (365,392) - - - - (365,392)

Net carrying amount REEE
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-SF+-A=1-H 2,647,551 38,534 - 569 38 2,686,692
As at 31 December 2019 R=E-hE+-F=1-H 2,775,680 37965 0 532 52 2814235
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—

14.

ZoEE+-_A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The Group's land is included in hotel properties. The analysis of
land is stated as follows:

Y% - MR RERE
REEZ LA AEEMER - £
ZAMBFMT :

Analysis of land: TS
2020 2019
—E-EF —FE-NF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FEIT
In France, freehold FOEE] - KA FERE 1,631,568 2,147,572

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's hotel properties with
a net carrying amount of approximately HK$2,647,551,000 (2019:
approximately HK$2,775,680,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28).

The market conditions and the impact after the outbreak of
COVID-19 were out of management's expectation. As the result
of the continuing operating losses, the hotel properties had
shown indication of impairment. At 31 December 2020, the Group
involved external experts to perform an impairment assessment
on the French hotel properties based on an income approach,
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period, to estimate the fair value less costs of disposal.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 6.72%
(2019: 6.47%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the five-year period is 4.0% (2019: 4.0%), which was the
same as the long term average growth rate of the hotel industry in
France.

Assumptions were used in the fair value less costs of disposal
calculation of the French hotel properties for the year. The
following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of French hotel properties.

Average daily rate per room and occupancy rate — The basis used to
determine average daily rate per room and occupancy rate are
based on historical experience achieved, increased for expected
market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the unit.
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15.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y¥ BERRE®E)
Long term average growth rate — The basis used to determine long REFHIERF-DUER 2 BARE A8
term average growth rate is the inflation rate forecast in France. ABEMRETREATFHERE -
Terminal capitalisation rate — The basis used to determine terminal RAREARE R B R 5 AR
capitalisation rate is the recent pan-European transactions. RIREERRERNE -
The values assigned to the key assumptions on average daily FREBRREEZIFHREREAER Y
rate per room and occupancy rate are consistent with past AREERZEBEHEHBFRIELTESAT
performance and expectation on market development. Discount AR —H - BhIRER - REHFY
rate, long term average growth rate and terminal capitalisation EEREHFEERNLEREINFTREFIKR
rate are consistent with external information sources. TR —EH -
The carrying amounts were in excess of their recoverable amounts EEAmEBHHETKLDSEE - At - &
as a result. Accordingly, the Group recognised an impairment of 2T - FTFEA+-_AF=+—HItHE
HK$333,609,000 on items of property, plant and equipment for the B AEBERYE - MELEEIER
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). T 52 Rk 18.333,609,000 8 7L (= F — A,
Fm) o
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. EAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the AEBEFREEEZERAMAEANEFR
movements during the year are as follows: BEIINT ¢
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles  equipment Total
By AE BWAERE Ast
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET TFET FET
As at 1 January 2019 R-ZE-hAF—F—H - = = =
Additions e 30,104 299 121 30,524
Depreciation charge mERX (5,359) (116) (36) (5511)
Lease cancellation BB E (21,167) - - (21,167)
Exchange differences on BEEEZER
translation =8 = M = (1
Asat31December2019and R-Z—h&E+=A
1 January 2020 =t+-HER
it S 3,578 182 85 3,845
Depreciation charge FEFRS (1,659) (118) (37) (1,814)
Exchange differences on MEEEZENR
translation Z= - 9 5 14
As at 31 December 2020 R-B=-ZH+=A
=+—H 1,919 73 53 2,045
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BREE

Software
B4
HKS'000
FHEIT

Cost [SHS
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—H—H 777
Exchange differences on translation BMEEECZERER (20)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H 757
Exchange differences on translation BMEEECZERER 70
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZEF+-HA=1+—H 827

Amortisation i on
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—hF—H—H (351)
Provided for the year FNEME (117)
Exchange differences on translation MEEAZIENZE 9
As at 31 December 2019 A—E-NF+=-—A=+—8H (459)
Provided for the year F N (95)
Exchange differences on translation MEEAZIENZE (49)
As at 31 December 2020 RZE_TF+_HA=+—H (603)

Net carrying amount REFE

As at 31 December 2020 R=-ZB-ZEF+=-A=+—H 224
As at 31 December 2019 RZZF-—hF+=-HA=+—8H 298
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. REEQAFZRE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Share of net assets B EERE 32,167 =
Goodwill on acquisition L b 2 1,219 -
33,386 -
Particulars of the material associate are as follows: BREABEAHESAREBOT :
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership interest
Particulars of registration attributable
Name Issued Share held and business to the Group Principal activity
FiReRT SR/ REEEGREEE
£ RiAFE BrdmbERER EREAL TEEH
Beijing Chemical Reaction Engineering Registered capital PRC/Mainland China 37.125 Manufacture and sale of
Science & Technology Co, Ltd.* of RMBI each T/ HEIKRE chemical products
(ERARENRARAR) AR AR B AR RERHECIER
AREIT
The Group’s shareholding in the associate is held through a AREBERERBE QR 2 BRETER
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. RRRETN2EMBARREE -
* For identification purposes only * [EHER
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HE—

17.

*

ZoEE+-_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

On 18 December 2018 and 3 March 2020, the Group acquired
6.25% (the “First tranche”, previously classified as equity
investment designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income “FVOCI") and 30.875% (the “Second Tranche”) equity
interests of Beijing Chemical Reaction Engineering Science
& Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Beijing Chemical”) with cost of
RMB22,000,000 (equivalent to HK$24,436,000) and RMB12,350,000
(equivalent to HK$13,676,000), respectively, and gained significant
influence through such step acquisition. This acquisition has
been accounted for using an accumulated cost approach in
determining initial carrying amount of the associate under equity
method.

The financial effect arising from the acquisition of Beijing
Chemical as an associate was summarised as follows:

17.

REE QT 2RE )
R-Z-N\F+-A+NBR-Z=

%i—ﬁ—a REB D RIUREL =
ImERIFEARAR ([ REIHHE])
6.25%&*%((%—%%@2& R %5 %8
BETEATFESAEMZE KA
(TEAFEFAEMZERAL Z
REANIE B ) 1230.875% P84 ([ 58 — #E A%
1) AR A AR 22000000
7T (BB 7 24,436,0008 7T ) & A R
wzssopooii($ﬁ%fﬁ“ 3,676,00087C)
EREASEERRKEBETEREEKX
=2 -l Eiuﬂzﬁ%$lﬁwﬁﬁﬁ£‘ K
THE QAR 2T EAERER R
FRASENER ©

Wt RS RRERBERREL L
M EtamT

As at 3 March
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2020
R=F=%F
=H=H
HK$’000
FET
6.25% interests held by the Group in FVOC| prior to the ~ ZR&= B UK BE BB A R IR A FEEFA
acquisition HEMEERARFEE625% e 13,799
Restoration to original cost for the equity investment at  E &k A& N B A FEH A HAL
FVOCI subsequently becoming an associate 2EWAZBAKE BEERRKKA 10,637
Consideration in Cash HERE 13,676
Total consideration R (E 38,112
Group's share of net assets of the associate REEEEHEAREEFE 36,893
Goodwill on acquisition Wb 2 1,219
For identification purposes only * fEHER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17. RBERTZREGH)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRHPEBES AR ZHBEERBE -
information in respect of the associate adjusted for any EHestRENTERNEZEEEARERRL
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying R4 A B TRAR 2R AN 2 BREE SER ¢
amount in the consolidated statement of financial position:
31 December
2020
—z-%E
+=ZRA=+—-H
HK$’000
FHET
Current assets mBNEE 272,640
Non-current assets EMEEE 906,918
Current liabilities mENaRE (620,770)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (445,746)
Net assets BEF 113,042
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the associate:  BEZANEE BB & N T 2 B 2 18R -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBE 2 EERELLD 37.125%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEBEEBEAREETE 41,967
Adjustments arising from step acquisition using A 2Rk AR B A A5 U B = A 2R
accumulated cost approach (9,800)
Goodwill on acquisition WihE 2 g2 1,219
33,386
For the
period from
3 March 2020
(date of
commencement
of equity method
accounting) to
31 December 2020
it S 223
ZAZR(ERE:
HRR AR
it S 322
TZA=t-HLHE
HK$'000
TEx
Loss for the period HBNEE (17,835)

For the period from 3 March 2020 (date of commencement of
equity method accounting) to 31 December 2020, the associate
did not generate any revenue, which was in the phase of
construction.

H-T-TF=A=REREGDER

BEBBRE T TF+ _A=+—

EliHHFEJ B2 R E Y B E A A
C B N BIBR PR PR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

18.

19.

INVENTORIES 18. FE
2020 2019
= —FNF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Food and beverages B &8k 686 957
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. FEUERF
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ET—NF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
Trade receivables FEURBR ZX = 12,798

Hotel operation revenue is normally settled by cash or credit
card. For travel agents and certain corporate customers, the
credit period is generally one month. There is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

BEEEWRA—RARSHEARX
e RKTHERETRARATEFME -
REE-RA—ER  XEEREE
SRR o 2N 5 B B U RR A
pEAEMERRREMEREERE
I o FEWARFRIAL TELR o

RERPREEER - REZHH
B BUEER(EMREBERE) 2K
oA

2020 2019

—EEHF —T—NF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —{EALAR - 8,621
1to 3 months —Z2={@A = 1,531
Over 3 months @A E = 2,646
- 12,798

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected loss for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on share credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The expected credit losses have also incorporated forward looking
information. The expected credit loss rates for trade receivables
that were not yet past due are minimal.
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PraTARZ ML B IR 7 A RET B TR 8 (=
EEE - EAMRmARKRERER
EHEREEER EERMER
BEE  RUERCREAREER
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EHREEEETHMARGAELZE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

PR E K

2020 2019

—E-FF —TNEF

HK$’000 HKS000

FET FHEIT

Loans receivable UL E K - 35,000

The Group's loans receivable, which arise from the money
lending business of providing mortgage loans in Hong Kong, are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Loans receivable are secured by collateral providing by customers,
bear interest and are repayable within fixed terms agreed with the
customers.

The Group applies a general approach in calculating ECLs for loans
receivable. All loans receivable are never past due and classified
as Stage 1. As at 31 December 2019, the market value of collateral,
which management monitors on an ongoing basis, was higher
than the carrying amount of loans receivable with an adequate
safety buffer. Consequently, loss rate is expected to be minimal.

AEEZRREFRAERTERMHR
BERZBMEEY - HINBTEHE

RUEFAFTPREMZEMDIELR
R YRAEEERF HE 2 E
EFHIANEE -

REBERR—REERTERTEEW
ERZAMEEEE - FARKER
BREAR Y2 BER/RFBEER R
“E-AFT-A=+t—H &
(HEEEEREER)ZMESRE
WERZEREE AARENREHE
& - At - FHHEIRREEN -
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21. PREPAYMENT, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. FAMNFKIE - HOBURRER
OTHER ASSETS HtwEE
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET T
Input tax of value added tax BED 2 EIETIE 34,010 24,727
Deposits and other receivables R R E At FE W RIE 4,110 7,658
Prepayments TR FRIE 2,410 1,701
Corporate income tax prepayment B IEN KA 93 1,195
Interest receivables JE A B = 93
40,623 35,374
None of the deposits and other receivables was either past due & I CH i fE YR IE 3 A i HA 5kOR;
or impaired and there was no history of default and past due B - IMEEANCEE KRB EARKIE -
amounts.
The recoverability of deposits and other receivables and interest 12 & I H M JE 5k T8 A K fE IR B 2
receivables are classified as Stage 1 without any significant WEIMEHSFERE R BBNS
increase in credit risk tracked since initial recognition. Their MR - EEE I &35 Kig -
recoverability was assessed with reference to the credit status of F+ o HUgEl Z«Wg%fiﬂ‘%)\Z%%q
the debtors, and the expected credit loss as at 31 December 2020 &R mEE S —ET-ZEF+_HA
and 31 December 2019 is considered to be minimal. =t+—Bk= 5—'3 ﬂ¢+ —R=+—
A > B ERE A -
22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BAVEFABRZEHMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
—B-FF —ZE-NF
HKs’000 HKS$'000
FET T
Investment in convertible bonds, BATERE 2 TR RES
at fair value K& 106,333 -
On 16 November 2020, the Company invested in the unsecured R-FE-—FTF+—F8+xH  AQ7
convertible bonds issued by Zhonghua Gas Holdings Limited $0F o FE R R IS A5 PR A 7] ([ o FE sk
("Zhonghua Gas") at a face value of HK$97,800,000. Zhonghua Gas [NDNBTHEEBAIRGEES  @E
is listed on GEM (stock code: 8246), and is principally engaged /597,800,000 7T ° AR EE MR TN GEM b
in the provision of diverse integrated new energy services in TR AREE : 8246) » TEHERNS
China. The convertible bond shall be for a term of 3 years, bearing RIB M2 (LR A Fae R IRTE - Al
interest at the rate of 8% per annum with the conversion price at IAEA T EBHA= ¢ 12 FI| R g0 =t
HK$0.27. The Company can exercise the conversion at any time B mIREA0273E T - AN A AR E
until the maturity date. B EARTRE R T TS AR A o
The derivative component causes the financial assets to fail to FETESRDERLRMEERERZTS
meet the SPPI criterion. As a result, the directors of the Company SPPIIZE o [l » AN FIESZ 2 IRA]
designated the investments in convertible bonds in its entirety as AL S AR A F AR AT E A8
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value N EMEBE H-_E-—TE+_—F1
of the investment of convertible bonds as at 31 December 2020 =+ HrABMBEEEE Y ANFEE
is determined by reference to the valuation carried out by an Th4R 2 E NI NS T (R E RN E T 2 (G 1E
external independent valuer. BE o

With the valuation work detailed in note 41 to the financial
statements, a fair value gain of HK$8,533,000 was recognised in
profit or loss during the year (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

RERRSZENHUREER
B

2020 2019

—EC-BE —E-NEF

HK$’000 HKS$000

FE FET

Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTEEH 935,415 1,276,020
Pledged deposits [REEETESN (42,544) (38,801)
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIBEEEY 892,871 1,237,219

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the pledged
deposits represented the time deposits pledged to secure
repayment of interests arising from interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2020, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$7,427,000 (2019:
HK$2,832,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months in Hong Kong and
Mainland China depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate to their
fair values.

RZEZZEF+-_A=+—HBKk=%
—NF+=ZA=+—H BEEHEER
FEEEEAANEREET BRITE
BF B2 ERBFR -

R-_ZE-_EF+_A=+—H K&
EAAREFEZERE S RIBITEBS
7,427,000% 7T (ZF — JL4F © 2,832,000
BIL) c ARBTIEREBKEME
B oo SRT o AR IR AP B K PR HNE B R K
BIARAETE - EERMNEEEETE -
AEBEEFBEREREITINEER
ZRITHEARE IR EMER -

RITFFIRE A RITHERAKRBREF
BHE - BB RPEAREZEHEH
FRHE-—HE=EAFE  RFX
SEZAKBEEHFRME  WIREAR
Z R E B A R BRERA B o R1T
FHRRCERFEREFRRNEERIFA
R BB AR ZIRIT - WEBE
ZEEEEE A FERSE -
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BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

24. TRADE PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

24. BRI

RERYEGEER  HWEFZAH
B BNERRZRESTOT

2020 2019

—E-EF —E—NF

HKS’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Within 1 month — @A NUA 410 906
1 to 3 months —Z=1AA 6 329
Over 3 months =@EAMNE 2,668 1,384
3,084 2,619

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 30 to 60 days.

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

FERBR R NET B R — MM 30H =60

BAEE -

25. HMENRERESER

2020 2019
= —F-NF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TET TET
Other tax payables Hith fEI 7118 27,551 15,864
Accruals FEFtER 11,060 24,938
Other payables Hth fEAT IR 6,384 14,939
Interest payable FERTFIE 6,899 6,311
51,894 62,052

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no significant HENZEY A8 - R EEE

balances with ageing over one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. PTHEEETIA
2020 2019
—EC-BFE —T-NEF
Liabilities Liabilities
=F afE
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Interest rate swaps FIERFEE L 9,859 4,375
Portion classified as current portion DB S 2D (9,859) (1,059)
Non-current portion FERNEAEL 75 = 3,316

At 31 December 2020, the Group had an interest rate swap
agreement in place with a notional amount of EUR175,000,000
whereby it received interest at a variable rate equal to the Europe
Interbank Offered Rate ("EURIBOR") on the notional amount
and paid interest at a fixed rate of 0.19% (2019: 0.516% before
14 October 2019 and 0.19% then after). As detailed in note 2.1,
the Group could not fulfill certain financial ratio and, therefore,
the interest swap has been presented as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The swap is designated as a hedging instrument to hedge the
exposure to changes in future cash outflows of interests arising
from its 5-year secured loan (note 28). The secured loan and the
interest rate swap agreement have the same critical terms. The
hedge of the interest rate swap was assessed to be effective, and
a net loss of HK$3,548,000 (2019: net gain of HK$3,519,000) was
included in the hedging reserve as follows:

RZBZZEF+A=+—H ' K&
B 5T 7 %% &% 4175000000 78
ZRIRBEEH - Bt - AEBEFBE
EZcHEEEERBUTRIBITRERE
(TBTRIBITAEFRE ) 2 FEF K
WERF S - WIZEE B F0I1IE(ZE
—NE:ZFE-NFTATEBZAH
0516FE R EH%0.19E ) X HFI B - Han
BEEE2 0 Fratal - AEBKREFEE T
B EFTE Bt EEERE
EUBARRKRINWERBIAE °

Tl HAENREEEEALRITA
BES P RFHEEMER(ME28)
FEZAKRBESRLESER - £l
BRFEREFNEBEHANAEAR
EBER - RIEBHNXRBHE L HH
FEEBEM - E B IFEE3,548,00078 T
ZZT—NF - WEIFEE3,519,00087T)

ERFARHRBEEDT
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Total fair value loss included in AU REEC AT EBRELE
the hedging reserve (7,699) (5,298)
Deferred tax on changes in fair value RN EEE RTERIA 1,925 1,325
Reclassified from other comprehensive REMEZEAWABZT BT NER
income and recognised in finance costs included =2 B & A ANMERR (Hf5t7)
in the statement of profit or loss (note 7) 2,969 10,779
Deferred tax on reclassification to profit or loss EFDEZBRRRZELERE (743) (3,287)
Net (loss)/gain on cash flow hedges Reneste (BB),/ Wzm$8 (3,548) 3,519
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HE—

26.

ZoEE+-_A=+—HILFE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Fair value hedge -
There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and

Interest rate risk

the hedging instrument as the terms of the interest rate swap
match the terms of the fixed rate loan (i.e., notional amount,
maturity, payment and reset dates). The Group has established a
hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging relationships as the underlying
risk of the interest rate swap is identical to that of the hedged risk
component. To test the hedge effectiveness, the Group uses the
hypothetical derivative method and compares the changes in the
fair value of the hedging instrument against the changes in the
fair value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Hedge ineffectiveness can arise from:

Differences in the timing of the cash flows of the hedged
items and the hedging instruments

Different interest rate curves applied to discount the
hedged items and hedging instruments

The counterparties’ credit risks differently impacting the
fair value movements of the hedging instruments and
hedged items

Changes to the forecasted amounts of cash flows of the
hedged items and hedging instruments

There is no hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit or loss.
Consequently, the change in fair value used for measuring
ineffectiveness for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
of the hedging instruments is the same with that of the hedged
items, equaling the amount of the total fair value loss included
in the hedging reserve of HK$7,699,000 (2019: HK$5,298,000)
disclosed above.
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26.

TTESmI A

DR EHH -FRER

BN MRS 4 2 FRREE B ER

ZEFR(ANEEeE  BHE - XK
BFTAH)— 2 S Ia B E

HTRAZEFELBERE - $%l%

HHBERRE L PR/

ﬁﬂTﬁ%A%ZH%HMAW£F
R B0z HEERERAAR o 3R B

ﬁZEﬂHﬁm AEE S EREHR
TETEZL Y TAZAFE

ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬂAﬁﬁWW%ﬁﬁﬁz
R EEBIELE -
hEM A RERRAR TSR

WEHHRIBEEEHEFTAZRZRER
EREER

J& PR T~ [B) B M) == gt 4R B 3R 1 31 IR B
NEmTA

UFF 2 EEARERGT BT
AR PER 2 ATES

WERIER MR TAZRMBRER
BEEHEE

jﬁﬁﬁ/\\\%g %ﬁgu/uiT/*E)&iﬁg °
PO dars oy
TZA=T—HBILEFE  ARF=E

mY LRI T AN EE R
WEHRIEE EHMER  HER EXXAHTHE
*Hkgﬁﬁﬁz NFEEIERSE
7,699,00078 7L (= ZF — JL4F : 5,298,000
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27.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

27.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

HEAE
HEAGZREEREFRNES N
T

2020 2019

—ECEF —ZE-hnEF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FHET FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—RA—RAZEEAE 3,933 -

New lease I HE - 30,524
Accretion of interest recognised during FAD RTS8

the year 152 770

Payments N (1,943) (6,193)

Lease cancellation BUBHEE - (21,167)

Exchange differences on translation BMEEECZERER 13 ©)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEAE 2,155 3,933

Analysed into: DT
Current portion B HAER 7 1,749 1,788
Non-current portion JEBNEAER > 406 2,145

Maturity profile of lease liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and

2019 is as follows:

RZEBE_ZEFR_FT—NFF+_A=
+—B HEAEZRHBEROT

2020 2019

—ECEH —ZTNF

HK$’000 HKS$000

FHET TF&T

Within one year —&FR 1,814 1,936

In the second year F_F 409 1,813
F=FEFRTF

In the third to five years, inclusive (BEEREME) = 399

Total undiscounted lease liabilities RAGREEAEERE 2,223 4,148

Discount amount ALIREE (68) (215)

Total present value of lease liabilities HEBGRRE 2,155 3,933

Current portion BVEAER 55 1,749 1,788

Non-current portion JERNEAER 7 406 2,145
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 27. HEEE®)
2020 2019
S —FNF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET FEIT
Analysed into: DT -
Within one year —F R 1,749 1,788
In the second year F-F 406 1,749
F-FEERF
In the third to fifth years, inclusive (BEERWE) - 396
Total present value of lease liabilities HEaEERE 2,155 3,933
28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 28. FTEBRITREE
2020 2019
—E-EE “E-NE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
BERRE Maturity HK$'000 BRI Maturity HS 000
(%) ko] FiEx %) glils THAT
Current L
Bankloans - secured BIET-EHRA
Three months “ARETEFTAER  0.19%+2.2% 14 October 2024 1,625,806 = = -
FURIBOR+2.2% " BIMmaE
Non-current FENH
Bankloans - secured RiTER-B5H
Three months = RABTERTRER - - - 019%+2.2%" 14 October 2024 1480,957
EURIBOR+2.2%" =Y INIEL
1,625,806 1480951
* Includes effects of a related interest rate swap as disclosed in note * BIEM B MR 26 TR E 2 H
26 to the financial statements. MBS X 2 2 -
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 28.

(continued)

STERTEEE)

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FEIT
Analysed into: PaR)il
Bank loans repayable: IRITEFENRE -
Within one year or on demand —FAFIREK 1,625,806 =
In the second year FF = -
FE=FEFRF
In the third to fifth years, inclusive (BHREEEWE) - 1,480,951
1,625,806 1,480,951

On 14 October 2019, the Group renewed loans of EUR175,000,000
from Societe Generale Corporate & Investment Banking, which
bearing interest at the three-month EURIBOR plus 2.2%, and will
be repaid on 14 October 2024. However, as detailed in note 2.1,
the Group could not fulfill certain financial ratio and, therefore,
the bank borrowings have been presented as current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The loans were
pledged by the Group's hotel property situated in France, which
had an aggregate carrying value of HK$2,647,551,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: HK$2,775,680,000). Deposits amounted
to HK$42,544,000 (2019: HK$38,801,000) were pledged to secure
repayment of interests arising from interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

RZZ—hhE+A+HmB - ~A5&H
E#E H A Societe Generale Corporate &
Investment Bankingf& A 175,000,000
BMIEER  ERlEER=-EART
EIRTRAEREM22EE I
BAR-ZE-_MFE+A+MHNAEE -
SR AN EE2 PR EEM - A&
EREFESETHHLLRBETE -
IERTTERE REE VAR R KT
ERBAE - EMERAREE N
REBRZBIEMEEER - AR
T -FEF+ZA=+—HZE
T 48 18 /5 2,647,551,0008 T (= &
— JL4F ¢ 2,775680,000/8 7T ) ° &
R0 /42,544,0008 0 (ZF— N4 -
38,801,000/ 7T ) 2 17 KB 1EHE ] -
EREENBERITEEMEE ZF
B2ZER-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

29. DEFERRED TAX 29. REHE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the REHEEBENREENFAZEFHW
year are as follows: T
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE
Fair value
adjustments
from
acquisition
of subsidiaries
W it
NEEEZ Others Total
AFERE Hitr wst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2020 RZZE-_ZEF—[—H 232,170 5,263 237,433
Deferred tax credited to statement of ~FREBZRKRTAZ
profit or loss during the year (note 11)  IEEFRIE(Ha#11) (85,043) (1,154) (86,197)
Exchange differences P =% 15,401 407 15,808
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE-F
at 31 December 2020 =t+—BZELEREA
BER 162,528 4,516 167,044
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R3S Sk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EEEHIE(%H)
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Losses
available for
offsetting

against future
Cash flow taxable profits

hedges RS
Be RRERB Total
TEHN wA 2B @gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Asat 1 January 2020 R-E-TF—f— El 1,094 16,520 17,614
Deferred tax credit to the statement of FRNEEZRTAZE
profit or loss during the year (note 11) MIBE(HrE11) - 23,124 23,124
Deferred tax credit to other comprehensive FREEM 2 EWAGTA
income during the year ZIBERERIR 1,182 = 1,182
Exchange differences PE =R 189 3,234 3,423
Gross deferred tax assets RZZZZF+H
at 31 December 2020 =t+—HZEERE
BERT 2,465 42,878 45,343
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and MEBEHmME  BETEEHBEEER
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of BEERGEETBRRRRP I -
financial position.
HK$’000
FET
Deferred tax assets recognised in N_E_TF+_A=+—A0%
the consolidated statement of RE MBI RE P ERZ
financial position at 31 December 2020 FERRIEEE 40,827
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in R-ZE-ZTEF+_HA=1+—H%
the consolidated statement of Zﬁ/\ﬁﬂ‘kﬁj{ﬂiﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁa/u
financial position at 31 December 2020 EEFRIEREFRE 162,528
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-_TFE+-A=1+—HIFE

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

29. EERIE(E)
B EEE

Fair value
adjustments
from acquisition
of subsidiaries

WEE T
NEIFMEEZ Others Total
REBEFHE Hith BEt
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
FHET FHETT FHET
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—-hE—H—H 240,136 3,049 243,185
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to ~ FARFEBZX (FTA),/
statement of profit or loss % 2 EEF I8
during the year (note 11) (Kiatn) (1,786) 2,302 516
Exchange differences I 5 =58 (6,180) (88) (6,268)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZE—NF+=A
at 31 December 2019 =+—RHZEE
MIAB AR 232,170 5,263 237,433
Deferred tax assets BEEMREEE
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future
Cash flow  taxable profits
hedges AR
RBe  RRERB Total
kA pas A2 B e 5T
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS$000
FHEIT FEIT FEIT
As at 1 January 2019 R-—E—-h&—A—A 3,129 19,945 23,074
Deferred tax charged to the FAREBZEERNG 2 ETE
statement of profit or loss RIE(KaET11)
during the year (note 11) - (2,922) (2,922)
Deferred tax charged to FAREEMZEEENR
other comprehensive loss ZIRFEREIA
during the year (1,962) - (1,962)
Exchange differences b 5 =58 (73) (503) (576)
Gross deferred tax assets RZZF—h&F+=H
at 31 December 2019 =+t—RHZEE
MIAE E AR 1,094 16,520 17,614
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and MERMS  ETEEHEBEENR

liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—_T-TF+-_A=+—HItFE
DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EEBIEE)
Deferred tax assets (continued) EEHEBEEE(E)
HKS'000
FEIT
Deferred tax assets recognised in RZZE-—hF+HA=+—H
the consolidated statement of TE4R & B ISAR R sk P 1R
financial position at 31 December 2019 ZIBEERIREE 12,351
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in RZZE—hF+=-A=+—8
the consolidated statement of Tt & B AR 3k R R
financial position at 31 December 2019 ZRETRIEE EHE 232,170
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the WHERL THIE R BRIEEHIEEE -
following items:
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-nF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHET FHEIT
Tax losses arising in Hong Kong © REBEEZTIABREY 238,313 213,640
Tax losses arising in Mainland China @ PR BIR B A 2 i TR Es1a 0 855 6,640
Tax losses arising in Luxembourg @ RERBEE ZHIEBEO 757 757
239,925 221,037

(i) The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$238,313,000
(2019: HK$213,640,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose.

(i) The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$855,000
(2019: HK$6,640,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the entities.

(iii) The Group has tax losses arising in Luxembourg of HK$757,000
(2019: HK$757,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the entities in which the losses
arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
above tax losses and deductible temporary differences arised in
certain subsidiaries as they have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

(i) AEBRERBELEZHEEBR
2383130008 L ( =& — L F
213,640,000/ 7C) + A MR FHAR(E
HEELEBBZ AR BEERE
St A o

(ii) AEERFRAMEEELEZHIER
iai%zsss,ooo/%m(_ T—NF
6,640,000/ 7T ) + A BEE R AIER
HERAERBEERTLEN - K
FERARIER—ZRFANEM °

(ii) AEERERRELEZHREER
757000/§7E(__ — L4 : 757,000
Bor) - Al ERR T HA R EIR SHE A IS
B ERZBRERFER -

WERETHBRRMESE Z il
TRIE 1B N R IR R = R SRR TR
REE RARZEWMBAREHR
BE-BER BRERE/NAR
ARAIEGELERRTORNT < HE
MIABRISLAER -

AR R A E R RRERS
AIASHER -

I A 75
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

30. ISSUED CAPITAL 30. 2RITRAE
Number of shares Issued capital
ROEE BRTRA
2020 2019 2020 2019
“ESRF TNF ZRSBF ZTNF
000 000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Fit FR FET FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BRAEEI0B T T AR
Authorised: JETE
At beginning and end of year RE R FHK 20,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEIRER
At beginning and end of year REREL 12,778,880 12,778,880 1,277,888 1,277,888
31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. HERRHESHE

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 17 May 2012 (the “Effective
Date”), the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “2012 Option Scheme”), which is for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their
contributions to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest. Under the 2012 Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
participants, including directors, employees, suppliers, customers
and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The 2012 Option Scheme will remain in
force for 10 years from 17 May 2012.
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31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2012 Option Scheme, the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and not yet exercised under the 2012 Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The
subscription price for shares in respect of any options granted
under the 2012 Option Scheme will be a price determined by the
board of the directors of the Company, in its absolute discretion,
but in any case will not be lower than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheet on the date of offer, which must be a trading day;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant, provided that for the
purpose of calculating the subscription price, where the shares
have been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than five trading
days, the new issue price shall be used as the closing price for
any trading day falling within the period before such listing. Upon
acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. Unless otherwise
determined by the directors at their sole discretion, there is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

No eligible participant shall be granted an option if the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to the date of the proposed grant to such eligible participant
would exceed 1% of the shares of the Company for the time
being in issue unless the proposed grant has been approved by
the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting with the
proposed eligible participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may, in its absolute discretion, determine which shall not be more
than ten years from the date of grant of the option and subject
to the provisions of early termination thereof and the Board may
provide restrictions on the exercise of an option.

Pursuant to the 2012 Option Scheme, the Company granted
options to subscribe for 145,780,000 shares to eligible participants
in December 2017.

31.

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

ERETE ()
BE—_ZT-——FBERES  FTER
BE_Z——FEREFSRAAF
EREMERET IR LA A RITE
R TR ZKRH A
o THBBTEEBITRMG Z30% -
BE - ——FEREASEREZE
MEREZROREBEEEEAARE
CEREMBETZER  HREM
BRATEBATEEZERS  VRH
REBHBH(AAERSB)EBRIATH
WMEBFTMUWTE - (NRONRBEERD
BEpAER S BER AT B REAT
WEHWHE  RONNRELE BB 2R
DEE HRTEREEMS - WK
PR ETTRRELSH » 8
METEBEARZBE LTATSHER
FRRZEZHHE - REWNERE
B AR ABRARRZ1.0087T
EREREREZRE -BREEST
REBMIBREIN  WELEBERET
FRINBRF AN REERART °

mEAER2EERKBRE K&
BERARRAEBEZERLERZ
REAAARTRERTEHESERS
HEZERE(BEEITERERT
EzBE) 2BMITERMETRE
BIZARARNEBBEEAREE
REETRMN 1% KRIEZBERHZ
BRECERARRABRRIBERAS L
- ERELEREREBREL
BERZEERABBATHRER
£ BRSO EBBEE -

BRESEAARBE-_FT——FBRK
BB 2GR REZE2EBIG
SR TE 2 HA ] P AT o] By ) 17 {50 P ASURE
HETTE R BRER D B BET 7
BB +F WESREMKEGRXAR
# AEFSAUUREEBITERER
2R -

ARBRZE—+F+_ARE_Z
——FBEEFERSERZEER
o B8 AR A LA SR B8 1 45,780,0000& AR 1 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HLFE

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BREREE)
The following share options were outstanding under the 2012 TR TIE-ZT——FBREFTI
Option Scheme during the years: T BB M ARTT IR
Closing price
per share
Exercise Price hefore
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding pershare  thedate on
at Granted Exercised lapsed asat  (subjectto Wwhich the
1 January during during during  31December  anti-dilutive  options were
Grantees 2020 the Year the Year the Year 2020  adjustment) granted
S R-22%%
RZ22%F t=h  SRAEE  BRESRH
~A-H o EmRw/  =t-B (IRRR  BEASK
AEA WA RS ERfTE P HATE EHe) Gl
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 HK$ HK$
& & & & & V-7 Ar
Directors gz
Mr Xue Jian BRrs 127,780 - - - 127,780 0.100 0.047
Mr. Law Wing Chi Stephen EAERE 10,000 - - - 10,000 0.100 0.047
Other employees EfbEE 7,000 - - - 7,000 0.100 0.047
144,780 - - - 144,780
Bxercisable at theend of the year KA F47fE 144,780 144,780
Weighted average exercise price ~~ BRMETHTRE
per share (HKY) (1) 0.1
(losing
price per share
Exercise before
Qutstanding Qutstanding  Price per share the date on
at Granted Exercised Forfeited/ asat (subject to which the
1 January during during  lapsedduring  31December  anti-dilutive options were
Grantees 2019 the year the year the year 2019 adjustment) granted
RZF-NE )
RZZ-NE tZh BRAORE  BRERY
) —A-A )  ERgk/ =8 (AfRE  AENSE
EEA RAITR EREL R X RATTEE B WimfE
000 000 000 000 000 HKS HKS
% & & 4 4 AT AT
Directors gz
Mr Xue Jian ey 127,780 - - - 127,780 0.100 0047
Mr. Law Wing Chi Stephen BAERE 10,000 = = = 10,000 0100 0047
Other employees EibEs 7,000 - - - 7,000 0100 0047
144780 - - - 144780
Bxercisable at theend of the year — F&AF17fE 144,780 144780
Weighted average exercise BRMETSTER
price per share (HKS) (A1) 01
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31.

32.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The exercise price and exercise period of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2020 and 2019
—ECEFERZT-NAFTZA=1+—H

Shares to be allotted and

31.

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILEFE
BRETE(s)
REBEEREER - HATEERE
ZATEBRATIEBT -

Grantees issued upon exercise of Exercise price*  Exercise period
) BRI TIE 4 T i i
EEA Bic 28 f 217 2 IR 1% TEE {7
‘000 HKS per share
T HFRETT
Directors of the Company 137,780 0.1 15 December 2017 to 16 May 2022
RARES T—+F+_F+HBAZE
—EFRA+TARA
Other employees 7,000 0.1 15 December 2017 to 16 May 2022
S bR “FtF+-At+EAR
—E-—FRA+NH
144,780
x The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in & THEITH IR ERAT AR 31T » SN A A

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company'’s share capital.

No share options were exercised during the year (2019: Nil).

At the end of the reporting year, the Company had options
to subscribe for 144,780,000 shares outstanding under the
2012 Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 144,780,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company, additional share capital of HK$14,478,000
and additional share premium of HK$2,158,000 transferred from
the share option reserve to share premium.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had options to subscribe for 144,780,000 (31 December
2019: 144,780,000) shares options outstanding under the 2012
Option Scheme, which represented 1.13% (31 December 2019:
1.13%) of the Company’s shares in issue. At the date of approval
of the financial statements, the total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the 2012 Option Scheme was
1,277,887,980 shares (31 December 2019: 1,132,107,980), which
represented 10% (31 December 2019: approximately 8.86%) of the
Company'’s shares in issue.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 74 of the financial
statements.

32.

AN IR E R & E) - AR
IfEER TR -
i?lﬁ%k%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ_ =INE= ¢
RBEEEEEH  ARBE-Z
——_EBEREFETHEEIRE
144,780,000 A% 14 7K 77 £ B 10 < B8 B%
o RBEANRIBE 2 RAEE B

%ﬁﬁh*ﬁﬁ%&%hA%ﬁE%
%17 144,780,000 f& A& A BRI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. ZEBREREXRMEE

CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did
not have any major non-cash transactions. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$30,524,000 and HK$30,524,000, respectively, in respect
of lease arrangements for buildings, motor vehicles and
office equipment.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b)
activities
The followings are changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities except changes in lease liabilities,
which has been disclosed in note 28 to financial

FEFERERS
REEZE-_ZE-_FF+_-_A=+
—BIFFEEHRE  RERT &
FEHEAEBZIEELRS - H
—hWE+=-RA=+—H
IEFEHE AEBEAES
EXHEABZIERGKEED
%U%%30524000%%5&2230524@00
B ESRETF - RE R

RERBZHELRE

BMEEFBHMELEZEEED
L‘ATH%@E%@J%E%ZE%

------- CEFREABEEESHRI
ﬁm%%ﬁ%Wﬁmﬁﬁr

statements:
Interest-bearing
bank borrowing
FFERTEE
HKS’000
FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZE=-ZF—H—H 1,480,951
Interest expense ﬂ F‘ 53 4,619
Foreign exchange movement b=k) 140,236
At 31 December 2020 R-_ZE-_TF+_-_A=+—H 1,625,806
Interest-bearing
bank borrowings
FRRITEE
HK$'000
T
At 1 January 2019 R=ZE—h&E—H—H 1,534,818
Payment of directly attributable transaction costs Sz {5 B # B 2 H KA (21,930)
Interest expense FERZ 7,544
Foreign exchange movement [E 5, & (39,481)
At 31 December 2019 R-EBE—NAF+-A=+—H 1,480,951
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33.

34.

35.

36.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R3S Sk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34,
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement

HE-Z-_ZTE+-_A=1t—HItFE

REREREBRMEE)

(c)

HEZRESRHAE
RenEXMHBEAEZREER

of cash flows is as follows: HEZEIT

2020 2019
=ECEF —FNF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
Within operating activities LR 94 959
Within financing activities BB EE 1,791 6,193
1,885 7,152

PENSION SCHEME AND OTHER RETIREMENT 34. EARSHEIREAMBRAKEFR

BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The total MPF cost charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss is approximately HK$186,000 (2019: HK$185,000).

There is no provision under the MPF Scheme which whereby
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce future
contributions.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35.
As of 31 December 2020, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36.
Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group'’s bank loans
are included in note 14 and note 23 to the financial statements.

AREBERBEAGMEABE BRI A
HFfBERAEERERRL-ATE
HHRBRHMERE S RAREFN S ([ 2
BEEE])  REBRBEEFEZA
- KRR EEREEAFERERD
DEAEL - YRENREBRRTX
o mBEeECEER —RBYE
BESHE  BAKREZEENREF
B AgERBRESHEFLEEHR
R ARHFAzEEETES -

REEEBERRI A ERAE
#7186,0008 7C( —Z— L4 : 185,000
JT) °

SRS A I B A B WA KA A A
HURARRPRZ BRE ©

HREE
RZEBE_TEE+_A=+—8 K&
B ELMABE -

EERR
AEBERERTERMER 2 EEF
BN I TSR MY o 14 M E23
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-TF+-_A=+—HILFE
37. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings,
motor vehicles and office equipment used in its operations.
Leases of buildings and motor vehicles generally have lease terms
between 2 and 3 years, while office equipment generally has lease
terms between 3 and 4 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Detailed information regarding right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities has been set out in notes 15 and 27,
respectively, to the financial statements.

(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

37.

HE

FEEEREBA
AEBMABYMEBEFEMERNE
FAERMAERBESTZERBH
HEAHW BFRAEZHEZHEN
—RR2FEIF MPLRERBZH
H—RR3FE4F - EX L AKH
TRAREEAIIATEE RS AN

@) (EHEEERHEARE
FRAEEERMEAGBZH
BRI ER T IERERME15 &
BisE27 ©

b) HEBRmEZFTHELZIHEHBL

leases are as follows: BELOR -
2020 2019
—E-SF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET TETT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 152 770
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FREAEITER 1,814 5511
ERARBMBEE RS THEE
Expense relating to short-term leases and R-_ZE—hF+—-A

other lease with remaining lease terms =+—H 2RI

ended on or before 31 December 2019 ZHHEZH X
(included in administrative expenses) (FFATTER) 94 959
Total amount recognised in profit or loss  fEi8z KPR 2 B &5 2,060 7,240

(c) The total cash outflow for leases and non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in note
33(a) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases one of its buildings in Mainland China under
operating lease arrangement, with a lease term of within one
year. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$ 1,688,000 (2019: HK$2,427,000), details of which are included
in note 5 to the financial statements.
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37.

38.

39.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

LEASES (continued) 37. HEw®m)
The Group as a lessor (continued) AEBEHBHBAE)
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, undiscounted lease payments RZIBE_EBEFR_TE—AF+-_A=
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable +—HB  BREASEHEAMEPIIZZ
operating leases with its tenant are as follows: A HEEERE  AREBER KK
AR IR EREERIBLAT ¢
2020 2019
—ECEBFE —E-hF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHET TET
Within one year —&FR 1,540 790
After one year but within two years —FREMERN 1,540 =
After two years but within three years MEBB=FRK 899 =
3,979 790
COMMITMENTS 38. &I
As of 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant R-ZEBE-_EF+_A=+—8 K&
capital commitments (2019: Nil). WRAMNEREARKE(ZZT AN
Fm) e
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BBALRS

(a) Related party transactions
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
this financial information, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the period:

(@ EBALRS
BRAMBEM AT Flz
R BN - AL E R H A R B
ATFILTIIEARR S ¢

2020 2019
—EC-BE —E-NEF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET FET

An associate: RAEEA T -
Loan granted EERHER 198,335 -
Interest income MEWA 8,743 -

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:
The Group had an outstanding loan and interest
receivable from an associate, Beijing Chemical, amounting
to RMB187,871,000 equivalent to HK$220,936,000 as at 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil). This balance was
secured by collaterals provided by the associate, bearing
interest rate of 6% per annum.

(b) BEEALTZREIBELE
RZEZZEF+_A=+—
B AEBERABE AR
RellmE 2z REEERLER
B AR187,871,0007T (FHZF
7 220,936,000%8 70) (= — N
F+—_A=1+—H8: &) BH
SR EREE N RIRE 2 IKIE S
ERIER - FFE B6% o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
Key management personnel of the Group include two
(2019: three) executive directors, which has been disclosed
in note 9 to financial statements.

Having due regard to the substance of the relationships,
the directors are of the opinion that meaningful
information relating to related party disclosures has been
adequately disclosed.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

39. BEBALTRBE)
() XEBIEEEASZRM

AEEBZITRZEEABBREM
B2(ZF—NF: ZR)HTE
= ORISR M EOWEE

BRNEEE 2 BEEE
% EERACASHEEMY
BATHEABEAGEED
&R -

40. REHE S ZERMTA

REFBEEER  IBRRIA

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ZEREEMT :
2020 —ECEE
Financial assets SREE

Financial assets

at fair value
through profit  Financial assets
orloss atamortised cost Total
BROTETFA REEEFTE
BREzemEE ZEMEE “st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEr FER FET
Loan to an associate RIEFHESNRIZER - 220,936 220,936
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5 AT ZUE « E Al
other receivables and other assets FEWFIE K b & B
JERMEE - 4,110 4,110
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFT ABZEZ
profit or loss CREE 106,333 - 106,333
Pledged deposits [REwEERA - 42,544 42,544
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY - 892,871 892,871
106,333 1,160,461 1,266,794
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Financial liabilities

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

40. RERESZERMTAMH)

TRAE

Derivatives

designated
as hedge
instruments Financial
in hedge liabilities at
relationship  amortised cost
EHHEET ®E
EEREPIA HAGTE 2 Total
ZUTHETR cRBE st
HKs’000 HK$’000 HKs’000
FET FET FET
Trade payables FEfTERR - 3,084 3,084
Derivative financial instruments TESmIA 9,859 - 9,859
Financial liabilities included in other T A E A FE S 5RIE K
payables and accruals EEtERzeRAE - 13,283 13,283
Lease liabilities HERE - 2,155 2,155
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SFEBRITEE - 1,625,806 1,625,806
9,859 1,644,328 1,654,187
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

2019

Financial assets

40. BERESZEMT A

T-nE

TRMEE

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive

income Financial assets
BAFEF A atamortised cost
Hip2EMA  HEHEKAHE Total
ZEREE LEREE BEt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET T FET
Equity investment designated BERATETA
at fair value through other Hin2EMBAZ
comprehensive income IR E 13,799 = 13,799
Trade receivables FEURBR TR = 12,798 12,798
Loans receivables EWER = 35,000 35,000
Financial assets included in FPATER TR - Efh
prepayments, other receivables and U FEREMEEZ
other assets CREE - 7,751 7,751
Pledged deposits [BEEERA - 38,801 38,801
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY = 1,237,219 1,237,219
13,799 1,331,569 1,345,368
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Financial liabilities

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

40. RERESZERMTAMH)

TEAE

Derivatives
designated
as hedge
instruments
in hedge Financial liabilities
relationship  at amortised cost

pes oyl e bize 31

BERHHAIA KAGEZ Total

ZTHETAR CRIBE Bt

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

FET T FET

Trade payables FETER X = 2619 2619

Derivative financial instruments ESRTA 4375 = 4375
Financial liabilities included in other FT A E A FE 5 R0 K

payables and accruals EEtERzeRAE = 21,250 21,250

Lease liabilities HERE - 3933 3,933

Interest-bearing bank borrowings SFEBRITEE - 1,480,951 1,480,951

4,375 1,508,753 1,513,128
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

41.

EMIAZAFERATFE

& &%
TRIRAEEz SR TAZREAE
RAFECREAERRFEARAS
EBRI) -

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AVE
2020 2019 2020 2019
. —F-NF = i —F-NF
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FHET FET FEr
Financial assets CREE
Loan to an associate R FHERTZ
R 127,008 - 118,323 -
Financial assets at fair N = N =T
value through profit or loss SREE 106,333 - 106,333 =
Equity investment designated EEEATERA
at fair value through other Higz2EMAZ
comprehensive income BRAZE - 13,799 = 13,799
233,341 13,799 224,656 13,799
Financial liabilities tHEE
Derivative financial instruments THEEmIA 9,859 4375 9,859 4375

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, loans receivable, trade receivables,
trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, the current portion of loan to an
associate, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, the current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings
and the current portion of lease liabilities approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the non-
current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group
approximate to their fair values due to their floating interest rates.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the non-current
portion of lease liabilities of the Group approximate to their
carrying amounts due to their carrying amounts are present value
and internal rates of return are close to rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.
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41.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s corporate finance department headed by the
finance manager is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of lease liabilities have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a
result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for lease liabilities
as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were assessed to
be insignificant.

The fair value of the non-current portion of loan to an associate
has been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The differences
between the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial
liabilities are not significant.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss has been determined by reference to the valuation carried
out by an external independent valuer by using binomial
model. The model involves estimates on time to expiration,
risk free rate, share price, expected volatility, discount rates
and others. The significant unobservable inputs used in the
fair value measurement is the expected volatility. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the expected volatility.
Any changes in the major inputs used in the model will result in
changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The variables and assumptions used in calculating
the fair value are based on the directors’ best estimate.

41.

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

ERMTRECZAVERAVE
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K
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77
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—RALFE

41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income have been estimated using
the market approach. If there is a recent observed transaction for
the same investment and the price can be directly determined,
the fair values are estimated based on the observed price.
Otherwise, the directors will determine comparable public
companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as price
to book value ("P/B") multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise
value of the comparable company by net assets. The trading
multiple is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity
based on company-specific facts and circumstances. The
discounted multiple is applied to the corresponding net assets
of the unlisted equity investments to measure the fair value. The
directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair
values, which are recorded in other comprehensive income, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with creditworthy financial institutions. Derivative financial
instruments, mainly interest rate swaps, are measured using
valuation techniques similar to swap models, using present value
calculations. The models incorporate various market observable
input including the credit quality of counterparties and interest
rate curves. The carrying amounts of interest rate swaps are the
same as their fair values.
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41.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair Value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2020
R-B-ZH+-A=+—H

Quoted prices

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

41. EWMIAZAFERAFE

B @)

AT EER
TEIMARESRMT A Y AFEE
BER

BAFEFAEZRIE -
Fair value measurement using

ERANTERETAVEE

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

SEB TS EAUBE EATTHE
ZHE WABE WARE Total
(- (B=%) (B=#) Hat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABRZ

through profit or loss TREE - - 106,333 106,333

As at 31 December 2019
RZE-NF+=ZA=+—H

Quoted prices

Fair value measurement using
ERNTERETAFEFE
Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
AR EAABE EATAEE
k=i | BABIR W ABIR Total
(F—8) (F=%) (F=ZR) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FHET
Equity investment designated BERRAFERA
at fair value through other Hin2EMAZ
comprehensive income BRI E - = 13,799 13,799
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41. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41, ERMIBZAFERIFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) Bk (E)
Fair Value hierarchy (continued) NEEBHR(E)
Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued) R FEFEZEE - (B)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the TERBER-—_E-_"FTER—_FT—NLE
valuation together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 +-_A=+—BEEMERZEAT
December 2020 and 2019: AEREGABBERTEGREDN
Significant
unobservable Sensitivity of
Valuation input fair value to
31 December 2020 technique BERFABE Range the input
“E-EF+ZA=1+—H R BAYE g AFEHBABEZHRE
Financial assets at fair value Binomial Mode Expected volatility ~ 39.82% 5% Increase/ decrease would
through profit or loss “HEAER of share price, result in increase/ decrease in

BOFEF ARG

determined by
the historical daily

fair value by 5%
S/ TH%HEEHRAT

stock prices

HBESAKE

EEZES

RER IR
Discount rate
BRI &

22.57%

BT/ THB5%

5% increase/decrease would
result in decrease/increase in
fair value by 6.3%

FH S/ THSREEER AT
BT/ EH63%
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41.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair Value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued)

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—RALFE

31 December 2019
o e

Valuation
technique

fhE R

EMIAZAFERATFE
B4k ()
NPERBR(E)
B FEFAEZEE - ()
Significant
unobservable Sensitivity of
input fair value to
BEATNABEHA  Range the input
iz &2 NFEHGABE BRE

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Valuation multiples

(EVIEGEE S

Average P/B multiple 1.0x-1.7x

5% Increase/decrease would

EERAFEFARBEZE
WAZBARE

of peers 1.0x21.7x result in increase/decrease in
R FHmERE fair value by 5%
R/ THS%EEEHRRT
LT/ T5%
Discount for 19%-30% 5% increase/decrease would
illiquidity 19%%30% result in decrease/increase in
MBI EI® fair value by 6.3%

A/ THS %@ ERAF
BETY,/ LFH6.3%
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41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41, ERMIBZAFERIFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) Bk (E)
Fair Value hierarchy (continued) NEEBHR(E)
Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued) R FEFEZEE - (B)
The movements in fair value measurement within level 3 during FRE=HRAFETEZEEWOT :
the year are as follows:
Equity
investment
designated
at fair value  Financial assets
through other at fair value
comprehensive through
income profit or loss
EERDFE
HPN-t] BAVE
2HEBA fTABR
ZBRAERE ZERMEE
HKS'000 HKS'000
T T
At 1 January 2019 —E-hE—A—H = =
Transfer from Level 2 HBEAFE-R 24,779 -
Losses recognised in other EHMZERAERZ
comprehensive income B8 (10,637) =
Exchange realignment P 5 AR (343) =
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZE—N&E+=-A=1+—H
RZEB_TF—A—H 13,799 =
Purchases EE = 97,800
Restoration to original cost for the investment HEMAHENR 2 RERE
subsequently becoming an associate ZEFRBEAR 10,637 -
Gains recognised in the statement of KB AERIL T AR MKA
profit or loss included in other income and gains Rz W - 8,533
Classified to investment in an associate DEARRBENRZIRE (24,436) =
As at 31 December 2020 RZE_TF+_A=1+—H = 106,333
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41. ERMIAZAFERATE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) Ba&E)
Fair Value hierarchy (continued) NEEBHR(E)
Financial liabilities measured at fair value BN TFEAEZSREE
As at 31 December 2020 Fair value measurement using
R-B-EH+=HA=+—-H EAUTBRETAFENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
SERT S EATEBRE EBEATATHE
Z8E WABE WABE Total
(E—#) (B=#) (B=#) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHET
Derivative financial instruments ~ $74€ g T A - 9,859 - 9,859
As at 31 December 2019 Fair value measurement using
RZE-NFE+=ZA=+—H FERANTSEETAFENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ER TS EAAHRE BERITUEE
ZiR(E B ABIE W ABUE Total
(%) (B=%) (F=R) F
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4A &R T A = 4,375 - 4,375
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FANReREERSBREEME
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into EF—HFNE-_RAFEANEZHILE
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities FRER - FRIEETE A LE
(2019: Nil). H(ZZE—NEF : |&) -

BRIZERAERAT | 2020 5% 173



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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42,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, loan
receivables, other receivables, trade payables and other payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, principally
interest rate swaps. The purpose is to manage the interest rate
arising from the Group’s sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
credit risk and liquidity risk. Management reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to financial
instruments are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily loans receivable).

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties and related parties. It is the Group's policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, trade receivables, loans receivable and financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables, loan to an associate
and other assets included in the consolidated statement of
financial position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The Group has no other
financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

The investments in convertible bonds expose the Group to
concentration of credit risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group assesses the financial position and performance of
the issuer of the convertible bonds and in view of sufficient net
asset and significant bank balance and cash of the issuer, the
management considers the default risk on the investments in
convertible bonds is not significant.
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42,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

For the money lending business, the Group manages and analyses
the credit risk for each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are offered. If there is
no independent rating, the Group assesses the credit quality of
the customer based on the customer’s financial position, past
experience and other factors. The Group holds collateral against
loans receivable and interest receivables in the form of mortgages
over property. The majority of the collateral are residential
properties, commercial properties and industrial properties and
all of the collateral are located in Hong Kong. Individual risk limits
are set based on the value of collateral provided by customers and
internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the
directors. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

The Group generally grants loans with a loan-to-value ratio of no
more than 70% of the value in the valuation report of the property
for the first property mortgage, and where it is a subordinate
property mortgage, the aggregate lending from all lenders to the
customer should not exceed 70% of the value of the underlying
property. The directors meet regularly to review the loan-to-value
ratio. The directors consider that the credit risk arising from loans
and interest receivables is significantly mitigated by the property
held as collateral, with reference to the estimated market value
of the property. The Group generally maintains at all time each
individual loan and interest receivable amount to be less than
70% of the total fair value of the corresponding collateral at the
estimated selling price.

Further qualitative and quantitative information regarding loans
receivable is disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

All the carrying amounts of financial assets at amortised cost,
applying the general approach, are classified in Stage 1 in terms of
ECLs as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group's treasury department closely monitors the Group's
cash flow positions on a regular basis to ensure the cash flows of
the Group are positive. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines available, obtaining
debentures from specific entities and borrowing loans from
banks.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

42,

MHEREEREREEE)

RBE TR
AEBZEBHPIERLTNERA
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EARYABAZEERERE @
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PR AKEE
BMEERE2RHBPEER

Z B RER

payments, is as follows: N
2020
i St 223
3 to less than
Less than 12 months 1to
3 months 3BAZE 5 years Total
AR 1288 R 156855 @st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables FEfTERRR 416 2,668 - 3,084
Derivative financial instruments $74 &g T A 793 9,066 - 9,859
Financial liabilities included in &t A EAf FE{ 7038 |
other payablesand accruals ~ FExtERZ S REME 13,283 - - 13,283
Lease liabilities HE&E 299 1,515 409 2,223
Interest-bearing STERITIEE
bank borrowings 3,395 1,802,498 - 1,805,893
18,186 1,815,747 409 1,834,342
2019
—E-NnE
3 toless than
Less than 2 months 1to
3 months EAZE 5 years Total
EAR 12EAR 1EE5F st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables FETER K 1,235 1,384 = 2,619
Derivative financial instruments T4 &g T A 269 790 3316 4375
Financial liabilities included in 5T A E ftb &1 7138 I &
other payables and accruals STERZERAE 21,250 = = 21,250
Lease liabilities HE&E 479 1457 2212 4148
Interest-bearing SERITIEE
bank borrowings 3,117 28,505 1,665,319 1,696,941
26,350 32,136 1,670,847 1,729,333

1 76 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2020



42,

43.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z_ZFt_A=+t—HILFE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. HHRBEZERRBR(#)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management BERER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to REBEAEE T EFEAREBAR
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and EEBEREIENRGBEEERERN
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business el A IEEEBRESRAKRE
and maximise shareholders’ value. BE -
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments KE .'“” 1B EE ARG W ELH
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk B REEEERBIEGED
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the Iﬂﬁﬁz BHE S EBRERERE KE
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment ok e AR R R AR
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new MIP% B R B 8 ANk BT PR $’$.
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital T AE R INER i N H & AN 48 5E B BB o
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies HE—_ T -—FEFE+-_A=+—HE—
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 FE—hE+— ﬂ *Jr— HIEEE &
December 2020 and 31 December 2019. RE Y B8 SIS F s
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total AREEGFBEEEABLXR(AEE®E
borrowings divided by total assets. Total borrowings include BB EMAE)ERERN - (EER%EE
interest-bearing bank. The gearing ratios as at the end of the EEBHRTEE AN ERBPELER
reporting periods were as follows: ZEEBEBEEERINT -
2020 2019
= T T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaE FET TET
Total borrowings BEB5E
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHESRTEE 28 1,625,806 1,480,951
Total assets AERE 4,067,167 4,210,121
Gearing ratio BEEAMFBLE 40.0% 35.2%
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 43. E2HHERER

Affected by the outbreak and widespread of COVID-19 pandemic,
the Paris Marriott Hotel has been closed since 17 March 2020 and
the earliest date to consider re-opening will be the end of May
2021, subject to the then circumstances. As a result, revenue from
the hotel operation segment in note 3 decreased significantly
during the year.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Group
has taken into account the increased risks caused by COVID-19
on impairment of the Group’s financial and non-financial assets.
Given the dynamic circumstance and uncertainties of COVID-19
situation, the Group will continuously attend to the development
of COVID-19 situation and react actively to its impacts on the
operation and financial position of the Group, and in the event
that there are any significant financial impacts, the Company will
reflect it in the Group’s 2021 financial statements.

= 2 COVID- 197@%?77*9%%%&%
i - Paris Marriott Hotel B —ZE - T F =
ATtRARBEREZEREFHENR
FRBEE T —FRARKRTE
BriERmE) o Bt - £ - BsE3FT
OB JE L&D IR W KiEm A

RERZEEEMBRER - A5H

EErRCOVID- 19 M B BASE &
BRIECEEERENRBKRIEN - &
FCOVID-19R) B REAR L 2 T B 15
AN [ 5 45 4B B SE COVID-19% 15 1Y 3%
RIUBGESHEEANEBELELRYB

MANTE  MEEENEAMBEE
2 ARAERAEE T ——FH
TR AR o
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44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. EAT]ZHBRRBR
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RERMAELEEBRR A ZHBMKR
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HMELZERAT -
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRARZEE 1,256 1,254
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 1,256 1,254
CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Due from subsidiaries [ R NGIE ] 1,649,078 1,463,344
Other receivables and prepayments b fE W Rk IE K TR IR 1,110 212
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 750,757 1,030,434
Total current assets MBEEBE 2,400,945 2,493,990
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBE
Other payables and accruals HMENRIERERTER 1,489 4614
Total current liabilities M BEER 1,489 4614
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 2,399,456 2,489,376
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRDEE 2,400,712 2,490,630
Net assets BEFE 2,400,712 2,490,630
EQUITY Eww
Share capital R 1,277,888 1,277,888
Reserves (note) () 1,122,824 1,212,742
Total equity A 2,400,712 2,490,630
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44, ARF2HHARRER(E)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: HaE -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: INTAARAIRERE -
Share Share option Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
1R ME BRERE B REEF @gt
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
FET FHET FET FHET TFET
At 1 January 2019 RZT—NF
—HA—H 1,027,637 2,158 23,350 198,663 1,251,808
Loss and total comprehensive FRBEIZHEE
loss for the year 4E%E = = = (39,066) (39,066)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—NE+=A
1 January 2020 =f+—HE
i
—A—H 1,027,637 2,158 23,350 159,597 1,212,742
Loss and total comprehensive loss SR EE & & E &8
for the year pk] - - - (89,918) (89,918)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-_ZTF+_-4
== 1,027,637 2,158 23,350 69,679 1,122,824

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy
for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45,

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 29 March 2021.

BRhEFERERCROERRITEZ ERE
ZRAVFE E—FTHBERPBEHRME24
BRABRMONRZ S BRERE - BHESES
B ERMGER(SHRBREETER)
ok #8185 == (R B ) s 4 2 B P A T =R A
R e

R | R

PHHRRENR _E-_—F=A_-TN
BEE =it ERE T -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFBEHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling NTARAEEBAETBEMBEE 2 EENAR
interests of Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the BE BENMIFERESEE  B@EENT)
published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as R EE T8 s CEZVBHRE - WIELE
appropriate, is set out below. EZE®REHOEERER -

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-A=t—-HLHEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
BB —IT-hEF ZT-N\F ZT—LtF ZITXF
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FHET FHT
RESULTS £
REVENUE g 37,770 244,685 300,710 260,970 250,156
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX KRR (ETR) /5 F (442,150) (27,059) 339,977 (23,714) (175,069)
Income tax credit/(expense)  Fr5FiER,(FX) 109,276 (3,556) (1,121) 28,394 45719
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FER(E18 )/,ﬁ%lj (332,874) (30,615) 338,856 4,680 (129,350)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE - EENRIEERER
INTEREST
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—BC%F ZFNF ZF/\F ZFtF TR
HKS$’000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET F&ET FET
Total assets BEE 4,067,167 4210121 4,339,175 4217128 3,922,103
Total liabilities BEE (1,855,326) (1,787,282) (1,843,148) (1,997,129) (1,909,347)
2,211,841 2,422,839 2,496,027 2,219,999 2,018,756
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